
Page 1 of 3 
 

PLUMAS EUREKA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
200 LUNDY LANE BLAIRSDEN, CALIFORNIA 96103 

PHONE: 530-836-1953 FAX: 530-836-2963 TOLL FREE: 877-377-1953 
Email – admin.mgr@pecsd.org 

Web-www .pecsd.org 
 
 

 
 
 

REGULAR BOARD 
MEETING AGENDA 

November 18, 2025 
9:00am 

 
 

Zoom Meeting ID: 856 7228 9549 
Passcode: 046746 

 
 

Board of Directors 
Chairperson Don Fregulia 

Vice Chairperson Todd Solomon 
Director Rich Machado 

Director Kim Train 
Director John Rowden 

 
 

*Members of the Public may address the Board on items of business immediately 
before or during the Board's consideration of the item after being recognized by the 
Board Chair (limit on the time the public may address the Board is 3 minutes) 
 
Call Meeting to Order 
Chairperson Don Fregulia 
 
Roll Call 
Chairperson Don Fregulia 
 
Adoption of Agenda 
Chairperson Don Fregulia 
 

 
Public/Board Comment and Written Correspondence Period 

 

The public and/or the Board of Directors may address the Board on items within the District's 
subject matter jurisdiction that are not on the agenda.  Written comments should be submitted to 
the Board Clerk 24 hours prior to the meeting to allow for distribution. The Board cannot 
comment or take actions on non-agenda items but may place the items on future agenda(s) for 
discussion and/or action. A strict limit on the time the public may address the Board is three (3) 
minutes per speaker. 

mailto:admin.mgr@pecsd.org


Page 2 of 3 
 

Presentation (Possible Action) 
 

1. Pat Moultrup’s Proposal of Whole Home Reverse Osmosis 
Don Fregulia, Chairperson of the Board of Directors 
Pat Moultrup was granted 15 minutes to present his proposal.  The Board may discuss the 
presentation and take action as deemed appropriate. 
 
 

Consent Calendar 
 

The General Manager, Jamar Tate, has reviewed these items, and, to his knowledge, there is no opposition to the action.  The items 
may be acted on in one consolidated motion, as recommended, or may be removed from the Consent Calendar for separate Board 
Action at the request of any person. 
 

2. Approve Meeting Minutes for October 21, 2025 
 

3. Approve Use of Reserve Funds (October 2025) 
Water Reserves $ 6,904.61 

 
 
Reports 

 
4. General Manager's Report 

Jamar Tate, General Manager 
a. General Report 
b. Arsenic Compliance Report 
c. Water Treatment Plant Project 

 

5. Administration Report 
Gina-Marie Morris, Administrative Manager 

a. Admin Report 
b. Payments Received Report 
c. Delinquent Accounts Report 
d. Limited Financials 
e. Policy Review 

 
6. Fire Chief's Report 

Steve Munsen, Fire Chief 
 

7. Committee Reports 
a. Budget and Finance Committee 

       Don Fregulia, Todd Solomon 
b. Water and Wastewater Committee 

       Todd Solomon 
c. Personnel, Benefits, and Administrative Committee 

       Don Fregulia, Kim Train 
d. Safety and Emergency Committee 

       Kim Train, Rich Machado 
e. Investment Committee 

       Don Fregulia, Todd Solomon, Jamar Tate, Gina-Marie Morris, Anthony Campbell 
 

 

 
 
 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Action Items 
 

8. Approve Quote from H2O Pro 
Jamar Tate, General Manager 
The Board will be asked to approve the quote to adjust the level of Well 2’s pump. 
 

9. Approve Resolution 2025-40 Fire Department Stipend and Compensation Adjustment 
Gina-Marie Morris, Administrative Manager 
 

10. Approve Resolution 2025-41 Advancement of OES Incident Pay and Establishes a 
Minimum Fire Cash Threshold 
Gina-Marie Morris, Administrative Manager 
 
 

Closed Session 
 

11. Public Employee Contract Discussion (Possible Action) 
(Government Code § 54957(b)(1)) – Public Employee Appointment / Employment / Evaluation / Contract 
Title: General Manager 
The Board will meet in Closed Session to discuss matters related to the employment contract of the 
above-listed position. Action may be considered upon return to Open Session. 
 

Open Session Report-Out Item 
 

12. Report Out of Closed Session (Possible Action) 
The Board will report any action taken in Closed Session regarding the personnel contract under 
Government Code § 54957 and may consider approval of the contract in Open Session. 
 

Future Meetings and Agenda Items 
  Upcoming Meeting Requests, Agenda Requests, and Schedule Changes 

• Policy Updates 
• Ethics and Harassment Training, Form 700 confirmation (January 2026) 
• ADA Ramp (Fall 2026) 
• Burn Pile (Fall 2026) 

 
Adjournment 

 
ADA Compliance: This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with disability, as required by the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Govt. Code Sec. 54954.2). Persons 
requesting a disability-related modification or accommodation should contact Administrative Manager, Gina-Marie Morris, at (530) 836-
1953 during regular business hours, at least 24 hours prior to the time of the meeting. 



PLUMAS EUREKA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Public Comment and Clerk’s Note

Board Meeting Date: November 18, 2025

Public Comment

Submitted by: Dede Barnhart
Date: October 24, 2025
Submission Method: Website Contact Form

Public Comment during a CSD Board meeting may come at the beginning of the meeting or the
end. I suggest the CSD Board put Public Comments at the end of the meeting. This would allow the
Board to get through the established Board agenda in a timely manner, then conclude with public
comments where each member of the public can speak once for a set amount of time before being
allowed to speak again, which gives everyone in the audience a chance to speak. Please
remember, public comments are not supposed to be a discussion between the public and the
Board. It is a time for the Board to respectfully listen to what the public has to say. Time
requirements for public comments should be strictly followed. Perhaps Gina can set a three-minute
timer on her phone. It is time for the Board to get better control of their Board meetings!

Clerk’s Note (for the Record)

In reference to the public comment above, the following summary of the Ralph M. Brown Act is provided
for the Board’s information and continued compliance:

Government Code § 54954.3(a) – Members of the public must be provided an opportunity to address the
Board before or during the Board’s consideration of each agenda item.
Government Code § 54954.3(b) – The public must also be allowed to speak on items not on the agenda
but within the jurisdiction of the District.
Government Code § 54954.3(b) – The Board may adopt reasonable regulations on the total time for
public testimony and the time allotted per speaker, provided such rules are applied fairly and consistently.
Government Code § 54954.3(c) – The Board may not prohibit public criticism of its policies, programs, or
acts.

The Chairperson determines when public comment will be taken (before or during discussion) and
enforces time limits or procedural rules as adopted by the Board. The Administrative Manager / Clerk
assists by maintaining time and decorum in accordance with Board direction.

This note is provided solely to clarify Brown Act requirements and support transparency and orderly public
participation in PECSD meetings.

Prepared by:
Gina-Marie Morris
Administrative Manager / Clerk to the Board
Plumas Eureka Community Services District
200 Lundy Lane • Blairsden, CA 96103
(530) 836-1953 | pecsd.org

https://www.pecsd.org


CSD BOD Meeting November 17, 2025 

PROPOSAL FOR MANAGEMENT OF THE WHOLE HOME REVERSE OSMOSIS SOLUTION 

The following is a revised Executive Summary for the Whole Home and Reverse Osmosis System 
(WHROS) project, managed by the Advisory Committee on behalf of the homeowners and reporting to 
the Community Services District (CSD) Board of Directors (BOD).  

Advisory Committee (AC) 
 

The CSD BOD will appoint an Advisory Committee of homeowners to manage the WHROS development 
process. The committee's duties include: 

• Manage the development and installation process of the WHROS process. 
• Manage the selected vendor. 
• Report regularly to the CSD BOD with project status and financial updates 

 

Project overview 
The project objective is to install 500 + Whole Home Reverse Osmosis Systems for both single family and 
townhomes. 
 

Funding and congressional confirmation 
• Existing Funds 
• The Advisory Committee   
• State grant 
• Future installations 

 

Scope of work 
Develop a list of qualified vendors 

 

Vendor selection process: 
1. Phase 1: An RFP will be prepared for 4–5 pre-selected vendors.  
2. Phase 2: The Advisory Committee will vet each vendor.  
3. Phase 3: A Zoom call will be scheduled to introduce the vendors to the CSD BOD and 

homeowners. 
4. Phase 4: The number of vendors will be narrowed down in three stages. 
5. Phase 5: The final vendor will be selected and the contract documents will be prepared. 
 

Advisory team management of the selected vendor: 
• Preparation: An AC member will meet with the homeowner and the vendor to review the site and 

installation process and confirm the installation date. 
• Completion and sign-off: Following installation, an AC member will follow up with the 

homeowner to confirm completion. The homeowner will then sign a release of liability for CSD BOD. 
• Payment: Signed documents will be submitted to CSD BOD for review and payment to the vendor 

 

Future installations and funds management 
 

Limitation of liability (to be updated after legal review) 
o Insurance requirements 
o Policy monitoring 
o Homeowner waiver 
o Release of liability 
o Post-installation claims 

 
END OF REPORT 



1 | P a g e  

 

 

PLUMAS EUREKA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 200 LUNDY LANE 
BLAIRSDEN, CALIFORNIA 96103 

PHONE: 530-836-1953 
FAX: 530-836-2963 

TOLL FREE: 877-377-1953 
Email –admin.mgr@pecsd.org Web - www.pecsd.org 

 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
MINUTES 

October 21, 2025 
9:00 AM 

200 Lundy Lane 
BLAIRSDEN, CA 96103 

 
 

Board of Directors 
Chairperson Don Fregulia 

Vice Chairperson Todd Solomon 
Director Rich Machado 

Director Kim Train 
 

 
 
 
Call Meeting to Order 
Chairperson Don Fregulia called to order the Regular Board Meeting of Plumas Eureka Community 
Services District (“PECSD”) @ 9:03 a.m. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 

• Directors Present: Don Fregulia (Chairperson), Todd Solomon (Vice Chairperson), Rich Machado 

• Staff Present: Jamar Tate (General Manager), Gina-Marie Morris (Administrative Manager), 
Anthony Campbell (Operator), Steve Munsen (Volunteer Fire Chief) 

A quorum was established. 

 

 
Adoption of Agenda 
Motion to adopt the agenda as presented. 

• Motion: Solomon  |  Second: Fregulia 
• Vote: Passed unanimously. 

 

 
 
 
 

mailto:%E2%80%93admin.mgr@pecsd.org
http://www.pecsd.org/


2 | P a g e  

 

 

Public Comment 

• Public comment was received from Pat Moultrup regarding his in-home filtration proposal. 
Extended discussion occurred. During the discussion, Director Solomon requested that Mr. 
Moultrup submit a petition demonstrating community interest in his proposal. Mr. Moultrup 
was granted 15 minutes on the November Board agenda to present his information. 

• A Zoom comment from Dee Dee Barnhart was received, expressing concern about meeting 
facilitation and noting that the Chairperson should adhere to the established three-minute public 
comment limit. 

 

 
Action Items 

 
1. Accept the Resignation of Pat Moultrup 

• Motion: Solomon | Second: Fregulia 
• Vote: Approved unanimously. 

 
2. Appoint a Director to the Open Seat 

• Motion to appoint John Rowden: Solomon | Second: Fregulia 
• Vote: Approved unanimously. 

 
• John Rowden was sworn in. 

 

 
Consent Calendar 

 
3. Approval of September 16, 2025 Minutes 

4. Approval of Use of Reserve Funds 

• Motion: Fregulia | Second: Solomon 
• Vote: Approved unanimously. 

 
 
Reports 
 

5. General Manager’s Report – Jamar Tate 
Mr. Tate reported on recent well work, including pump-testing, drawdown monitoring, and 
coordination with engineers to determine the correct pump depth before reinstalling equipment. He 
noted ongoing cost negotiations with the contractor and responded to questions regarding regulatory 
standards and treatment requirements. 
 

6. Administrative Report – Gina-Marie Morris 

Ms. Morris provided updates on payments received, delinquent accounts, and current payment 
agreements. She reported that several long-term delinquent accounts were moving into lien status 
and that the annual audit was scheduled to begin that day. 



3 | P a g e  

 

 

7. Fire Chief’s Report – Steve Munsen 

Chief Munsen was present and provided his monthly report. There were no additional questions from 
the Board. 
 

8. Committee Reports 

• Budget & Finance – Fregulia, Solomon 
• Water & Wastewater – Solomon 

o A summary of public requests and the actions taken by the Committee was provided. 
• Personnel & Administration – Fregulia, Train 
• Safety & Emergency – Train, Machado 
• Investment Committee – Fregulia, Solomon, Tate, Morris, Campbell 

o A summary of investment activities was presented to the Board 
 
 
Action Items (Continued) 

 
9. Approve September 2025 Financials 

• Motion: Rowden | Second: Fregulia 
• Vote: Approved unanimously. 

 
10. Approval of Locations for Test Well(s) 

• Tabled till next meeting. 
 

11. Approval of DOWL Task Order 22 
The Board reviewed DOWL Task Order No. 22. 
Motion to approve the task order pending the addition of cumulative effects analysis and inclusion of 
required maps and charts. 

• Motion: Fregulia | Second: Solomon 
• Vote: Approved unanimously. 

 
12. Approve Water System Emergency Response Plan 

• Motion: Fregulia | Second: Rowden 
• Vote: Approved unanimously. 

 
13. Approve Wastewater Emergency Response Plan 

• Motion: Fregulia | Second: Solomon 
• Vote: Approved unanimously. 

 
14. Approve Payment to Cheryl Johnson with Chester PUD 

• Not discussed and no action taken, removed for agenda at this time. 
 



4 | P a g e  

 

 

15. Approve Reimbursement of $1,652.69 to J. McGuire 

• Motion: Fregulia | Second: Rowden 
• Vote: Approved unanimously. 

 
 
Closed Door 

 
16. Public Employee Performance/Conduct 

The Board met in closed session to discuss employee performance and conduct. 
No reportable action was taken. 

 

 
Future Meetings and Agenda Items 
  Upcoming Meeting Requests, Agenda Requests, and Schedule Changes 

• Pat Moultrup – 15 minutes on November Agenda 
• Ethics and Harassment Training, Form700 confirmation (January 2026) 
• ADA ramp (Fall 2026) 
• Burn Pile (Fall 2026) 

 
 
Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 11:00 a.m. 
 
Minutes prepared by: Gina-Marie Morris, Clerk of the Board 
 
 
APPROVED:________________________________ ATTEST: :________________________________ 
 Don Fregulia, Chairperson Gina-Marie Morris, Clerk of the Board 



Plumas Eureka CSD 

Request to Use Reserve Funds 
Wastewater (Reserve / Debt): $                        Water (Reserve / Debt): $   6,904.61         

Vender / Supplier 
/ Contractor 

Fund to 
be used 

What is being done or 
purchased? 

Additional information 
or notes 

Invoice 
(or quote) 

Amt 

Sierra Controls Water 
Reserve 

Wells - Install Pepwave 
and Moxa for 
Communications to SCADA 

 126338 $ 1,789.96 

DOWL Water 
Reserve 

Treatment Plant - 
Permitting Memo, drawing 
and specs updates, 
correspondence 

Contract Balance: 
$23,466.10 

7363.30222.
21-11 

$ 5,017.75 

BBK Water 
Reserve 

Potential Purchase WTP 1042697 $ 96.90 

      

      

      

      

 

I, Gina-Marie Morris , attest that the above is true, complete, and necessary. 

X  Date:   11/14/25  

 

The foregoing use of the noted reserve fund was duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Plumas 
Eureka Community Services District, at a meeting thereof, held on the ___18th__ day of _November___, 
_2025_ by the following vote:   

AYES:   
 Signature, Board of Directors Member 

NAYS:    
 Printed Name and Title 

ABSENT: 



Plumas Eureka Community Services District 

General Manager’s Report 
Date: 11/18/2025 

 

1. Well 2 Update 

District staff conducted multiple drawdown tests at Well 2 over several days to evaluate 
well performance under varying pumping conditions. The collected data was transmitted to 
the hydrogeologist at DOWL for analysis. Using groundwater modeling software, DOWL 
simulated projected drawdown levels under different pumping rates. 

Preliminary results indicate an optimal pump setting between 170 and 190 feet. DOWL will 
issue a final pump setting recommendation following model validation. Once that 
recommendation is received, H2O Pro will prepare a cost proposal for pump installation 
and configuration based on the specified depth. 

 

2. Water Treatment Plant Update 

DOWL has completed the design phase of the Water Treatment Plant project. The technical 
package and other associated documents are to be uploaded by Dowl into the FAAST 
application portal for review and processing by the State Water Resources Control Board. 
This marks a significant milestone in advancing the project toward funding and permitting 
readiness. Also, the District received news from Congressman Kiley’s office that our project 
was included in the funding package presented to Congress for votes on November 12th. Its 
anticipated that the package will pass and the president will sign the funding package, this 
is one step closer to securing funding through congressional appropriations for the 
treatment facility.   

 

3. Policy Review & Updates 

District staff and management continue reviewing existing operational and administrative 
policies for consistency with current regulations and best practices. Draft updates will be 
brought forward for Board consideration at upcoming meetings. This ongoing effort ensures 
that District governance documents remain current, clear, and compliant. 

 

 



4. Test Wells 

Criteria for the development of future test wells has been drafted to guide site selection, 
drilling parameters, and evaluation metrics. Additionally, staff reviewed historical test well 
reports from 2010–2011 to inform current planning and ensure lessons learned from past 
efforts are integrated into the test well program, should it be decided to proceed with 
drilling test wells. A  brief summary of those reports are included for information. 

 

5. Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) 

The District received the draft Local Hazard Mitigation Plan and has provided the requested 
supplemental information to the plan authors. The plan is currently under revision to 
incorporate the additional data provided by the District, as well as other agencies within 
the county. Once finalized, the LHMP will be submitted to CalOES and FEMA for approval, 
ensuring PECSD’s continued eligibility for hazard mitigation and resilience grant funding. 

 



 

PECSD Exploratory Test Well Siting Criteria 

Objectives 

• Increase supply reliability (safeguard, may or may not be a substitute for existing 
wells). 

• Target geologic zones with the highest probability of sustainable yield and 
improvable water quality (recognizing outcomes are uncertain). 

• Control costs, access, and permitting risk. 

 

Assumptions  
Hydrogeologic indicators from nearby logs and mapping are considered reasonably 
predictive, but local intermixture is high; yields and water quality can change over short 
distances and with depth. Initial depth targets (e.g., 200–300 ft) are screening ranges 
only—field “depth gates” or pre-planned checkpoints, will be used to adjust based on 
lithology, water strikes, and real-time parameters. Constituents of concern remain 
arsenic, iron, and manganese; EC/TDS and general minerals are used as proxies for 
treatment burden. Even if a test well encounters compliant water, exploration is a 
system resilience measure. 

Sites are assumed to meet DWR Bulletin 74 and County setbacks, avoid sensitive 
environmental/cultural areas, and provide year-round access for a C-57 rig, water truck, 
and support vehicles with safe turnarounds and overhead clearance. 
Development/pump-test water is expected to be managed on site with erosion/best-
management practices; off-haul would be the exception. Each location is evaluated for 
potential conversion to production (power, security, noise), without committing the 
District to that outcome. 

Costs use typical regional unit rates with 10–20% allowances for fuel/steel/labor 
volatility. Work is phased—one highest-ranked site at a time—with predefined stop-rules 
(e.g., no sustainable yield by depth X, persistently poor water quality, unstable hole 
conditions) to limit speculative spend. Seasonal constraints (winter access, spring melt) 
may compress field windows; a 2–6 week execution per site is assumed, weather 
permitting. Short-term community impacts (noise, traffic) will be mitigated and noticed in 
advance. All data (lithologic logs, step-drawdown/constant-rate tests, field and lab 
results) will be collected under standard protocols to ensure traceability and 
comparability for future design decisions. 

 

 



 

 

A) Mandatory (Go/No-Go) Criteria 

Land control & access: Written site access (District-owned or executed entry 
agreement). Year-round vehicle access for drill rig, water truck, and crane. 
 

Regulatory setbacks & wellhead protection: Meets California DWR Well Standards 
(Bulletin 74) and County setbacks from potential contaminant sources (septic/leach 
fields, sewer mains, fuel/chem storage, animal enclosures, storm drains). Outside 
known hazmat/UST sites or mapped plumes. 
 

Constructability: Sufficient drill pad area (rig + support), safe egress, overhead 
clearance (no powerline conflicts). Feasible cuttings/development-water management 
per permit conditions. 
 

Environmental & cultural constraints: Avoid mapped wetlands, critical habitat, and 
cultural resources to comply with CEQA/permit screening. 
 

Utility clearance: USA 811 clearance feasible; no conflicts with buried utilities. 
 

Proximity to distribution: Within practical distance to tie into existing system 
(temporary pump test piping, meters, discharge). 
Safety: Adequate setbacks from roadways, slopes, and wildfire hazard fuel; safe work 
zone. 

Note: If a location fails any Mandatory criterion, remove it from consideration. 

 

 

B) Preferred (Scored) Criteria  

Score each 0–5 (0 = poor, 5 = excellent) and apply weights. 

• Sustainable yield / high-volume potential (Weight 5): Evidence of high, 
sustainable production (historical logs nearby, transmissivity indicators, fracture 
density, favorable lithology). 



 

• Proximity to treatment plant / feed line integration (Weight 4): On or near 
plant parcel or along the planned feed; minimizes conveyance cost, easements, 
and schedule. 

• Hydrogeologic indicators (Weight 3): Alignment with mapped aquifer trends, 
favorable stratigraphy, nearby well logs, fracture traces/geophysics. 

• Pump-test & sampling logistics (Weight 2): Space/access for step-drawdown 
and constant-rate tests; feasible discharge with erosion control; safe sampling 
setup. 

• Permitting simplicity & schedule (Weight 2): Straightforward County well 
permit; minimal special conditions/ROW issues. 

• Future production conversion potential (Weight 2): If successful, efficient 
conversion to a production well (setbacks, power, secure pad, noise buffering). 

• Neighborhood compatibility (Weight 1): Low noise/traffic conflicts; mitigation 
feasible (hours, sound curtains, routing). 

• Expected water quality (Weight 1): Likelihood of manageable treatment 
(arsenic/Fe/Mn) based on nearby data; de-emphasized since water will be 
centrally treated. 

Tie-breaker guidance: Favor the site with (a) higher specific capacity under test 
conditions and (b) lower total conveyance cost/time to the plant or feed line. 

 

 

C) Exclusion “Red Flags” 

• Inside prohibited setback parameters per DWR/County. 

• Known contaminated soil/groundwater site without regulator concurrence. 

• Unstable slopes, floodways, or high fire-risk locations without feasible mitigation. 

• Infeasible access for equipment or discharge management. 

D) Pre-Field Desktop Package (for each candidate site) 

• Map set (GIS): parcels, roads, utilities, setbacks, environmental layers, 
topography. 

• Hydrogeologic digest: nearby well logs, depths, yields, water-quality summaries. 

• Site photos and access notes (turnarounds, grade, overhead lines). 



 

• Permit path: County well permit checklist; any special conditions. 

• Risk notes: neighbors’ concerns, traffic control, dust/noise plan. 

E) Field Verification Steps 

• Walk the site with drillers and the hydrogeologist; confirm rig approach, pad, 
discharge route, and safety. 

• Stake proposed borehole, potential discharge point, and test-pump setup. 

• Confirm temporary power or generator placement; spill prevention and BMPs. 

• Finalize cuttings/water management (containment, hauling if required). 

 

F) Decision Matrix  
 
Use this table to rank finalists. Highest weighted total = preferred location. 
Criterion Weight Site A 

(0–5) 
Site B 
(0–5) 

Site C 
(0–5) 

Sustainable yield / high-volume 
potential 

5 
   

Proximity to treatment plant / feed 
line 

4 
   

Hydrogeologic indicators 3 
   

Pump-test & sampling logistics 2 
   

Permitting simplicity & schedule 2 
   

Future production conversion 
potential 

2 
   

Neighborhood compatibility 1 
   

Expected water quality (centrally 
treatable) 

1 
   

Weighted total — 
   

 

 

 

 



 

 

G) Risk & Cost Controls for “Speculative” Exploration 

• Phase work: start with one best-ranked location; proceed to the next only if 
results warrant. 

• Depth gates: set check-ins (e.g., every 50–100 ft) tied to lithology and field data. 

• Stop-rules: predefined halt criteria (e.g., no water-bearing zone by depth X; poor 
water quality; unstable hole). 

• Budget cap: fixed allowances for standby, development water handling, and 
mobilization. 

H) Data Objectives (per test well) 

• Continuous lithologic log; screen interval rationale. 

• Step-drawdown and constant-rate test results (yield, specific capacity, recovery). 

• Water-quality suite: arsenic, iron, manganese, general minerals; field parameters 
(pH, EC, temp, ORP). 

• Convertibility memo: feasibility, setbacks, power, noise, security, tie-in route. 

 

I) Other Factors: Timing, Post-Testing Development Costs, and Financing 

1) Timing for Testing & Development 

• Seasonal windows: Target April–November for drilling/pump tests (reduced 
freeze risk, better access). Avoid spring melt road restrictions and peak fire-
weather PSPS periods where feasible. 

• Regulatory/permit lead time: Allow 2–4 weeks for county well 
permits/notifications and USA 811 locates; add time if cultural/environmental 
screening is required. 

• Procurement/contracting: Build 2–3 weeks for RFP/quotes, board action, and 
insurance/bonds. 

• On-site durations (typical): Mobilization (1–2 days), drilling (2–5 days), 
development (1–2 days), step-drawdown + 12–24 hr constant-rate test (2–3 
days), demob (1 day). 

• Contingencies: Add weather/slip days and a standby allowance for downhole 
issues; predefine depth gates and stop-rules to prevent schedule creep. 



 

2) Post-Testing Development Costs (if advancing a successful test site) 

• Well completion/upgrades: Final casing/screen, gravel pack, sanitary seal, 
surface completion, well house (if needed). 

• Pumping equipment: Test pump removal; permanent pump, column pipe, cable, 
drop tube, VFD, check valves, appurtenances. 

• Power & controls: New/upsized service, ATS/generator readiness, 
panel/enclosure cooling/ventilation, SCADA integration. 

• Conveyance to plant/feed line: Trenching, pipe, valves, blow-offs/air-vacs, 
roadway restoration, and crossings/easements as required. 

• Water quality/treatment tie-ins: Sampling ports, isolation valves, and any 
interim treatment required prior to plant receipt. 

• Surface/ancillary: Pad, drainage/stormwater BMPs, fencing/security, sound 
abatement if near residences. 

• Soft costs: Design, surveying, environmental/cultural compliance, permits/fees, 
construction management, inspection. 

• Cost controls: Use unit-price schedules, retainage, and a 10–20% contingency 
for steel/fuel/labor volatility; stage NTP in phases (completion → pump → 
conveyance) tied to milestones. 

3) Financing & Cash-Flow Considerations 

• Primary sources: CA DWSRF/SRF (planning/construction), USDA RD Water & 
Waste, potential congressionally directed funding, and hazard-mitigation co-
funding where resilience applies. 

• Bridge & match: Identify any interim financing (board-approved internal loans or 
short-term credit) for early packages while grants/loans close. 

• Affordability posture: Centralized treatment remains the compliance anchor; 
exploratory wells are a resilience safeguard. Emphasize ratepayer affordability 
and readiness-to-proceed in applications. 

• Board actions & timing: Calendar resolutions for application/intent-to-
reimburse, environmental findings, and award authority; align bid dates with 
funding decision windows. 

• Cash-flow phasing: Sequence contracts so high-dollar components (permanent 
pump/conveyance) start after funding commitment. 

 



Plumas Eureka Community Services District 

 

Board Summary: Causes of Arsenic Trends in District Wells and Groundwater Supply 
Alternatives 

(Source: Plumas Geo-Hydrology, “Causes of Arsenic Trends in PECSD Wells and a Survey of 
Potential Groundwater Supply Alternatives,” July 3, 2009) 

 

Overview 

This technical report, prepared by Plumas Geo-Hydrology (Burkhard Bohm), examined the 
causes of arsenic fluctuations in the District’s production wells and explored potential 
alternative groundwater sources with lower arsenic concentrations. The study draws on 
field sampling, isotope analysis, and historic data from District wells and nearby sources; 
study was initiated in 2008. Sources included Well 1b, Well 2, Golf Course Well and 
Evergreen Spring. Additional data was collected springs, streams, and wells from Johnsville 
to the middle fork of the Feather River.  

 

Key Findings 

• Groundwater Recharge:  
Shallow aquifer recharged by infiltrating spring water. Deep aquifer probably 
contains mixture of groundwater recharge from the uplands and an unidentified 
groundwater source and possibly affected by leakage from the shallow aquifer.  
Surface water changes (e.g., reduced flow in the Lundy Ditch, land disturbance, 
wildfire) may influence recharge chemistry and groundwater quality. 

• Seasonal Variability: 
Arsenic, iron, and manganese concentrations in PECSD wells vary seasonally, 
typically peaking in late summer/early fall and decreasing in winter and spring. The 
variations result from mixing between multiple aquifer sources, not simply pH or 
chemical changes. 

• Aquifer Conditions: 
The District’s wells draw from a deep aquifer receiving recharge from upland areas 
and possibly from lower-arsenic floodplain aquifers east of the District. Deeper 
aquifer is probably a mixture of two groundwater sources, 1) originating in the upper 
watershed ( Johnsville area); 2) originating from the east of PECSD. Springs within 



the District are a mixture of deep aquifer water affected by shallow aquifer water. 
Concentrations of arsenic are symptomatic of mixing in the deep aquifer; lower 
arsenic presumably associated with flood plain aquifers of the river.  

• Well Performance: 

o Well 1B: Lower arsenic levels; performance stable. Moderate pumping draws 
better-quality water. 

o Well 2: Higher pumping rates correlate with higher arsenic; arsenic levels 
increased around 30% from 2006–2008; 11.2ppb (2006) & 14.4ppb (2008). 
Current average over the last year, 14.2ppb   

 

Recommendations (According to the study in 2009)  

These recommendations lead to the exploratory test wells that were drilled in 2010 and the 
current well operations and monitoring.  

1. Operational Adjustments 

o Shift production balance from Well 2 toward Well 1B where feasible. 

o Monitor arsenic, iron, and manganese monthly to track changes tied to 
pumping rates and seasonal effects. 

2. Exploration and Future Supply Development 

o Investigate Evergreen Spring and Test Well #1 (Poplar Valley Rd & 
Cottonwood Dr)—both exhibit low arsenic concentrations. 

o Consider exploratory drilling near the District’s eastern floodplain, where 
private wells show low arsenic and high yield potential. 

o Proposed test well depths: 285–500 feet, with water sampling at discrete 
intervals during drilling. 

3. Long-Term Strategy 

o Continue isotope and chemistry analysis to refine the hydrogeologic model. 

o Evaluate feasibility of developing a new production well in the identified low-
arsenic zones. 

 



Plumas Eureka Community Services District 

Board Summary: Test Wells TW-1 and TW-2 Drilling and Testing Results 

(Plumas Geo-Hydrology, March 2011) 

 

Project Overview 

Two exploratory test wells (TW-1 and TW-2) were drilled and tested in 2010 to identify 
additional groundwater supply sources for PECSD and to locate aquifers with naturally low 
arsenic concentrations suitable for blending with existing production wells. Both wells 
were constructed and analyzed under the supervision of Plumas Geo-Hydrology. Each test 
well was drilled deeper than the existing wells to access the hypothesized low arsenic 
formation; with target depths of 600ft.  

 

Original Site Recommendations  

1. Evergreen Spring (Pine Tree Court)  
2. A location near/next to monitoring well #1 ( Poplar Valley & Cottonwood)  
3. A location near Well 1b  
4. Flood plain area ( Sugar Pine)  

Sites #1 & #4 were chosen for the practical reason they were located on District property.  

 

Test Well 1 (TW-1) – Sugar Pine Drive Floodplain Site 

Purpose: Selected to evaluate the floodplain aquifer east of the District, where prior 
private well data indicated low arsenic concentrations. 
Depth: 585 feet  Static Water Level: Artesian (~0.1 ft above top of casing) 

Subsurface Geology: 

• 0–45 ft: Sandy gravel (unconfined aquifer) 

• 50–95 ft: Clay aquitard 

• 100–585 ft: Confined coarse sand and gravel aquifer 

• Perforations: 258–267 ft, 275–290 ft, 300–330 ft 

 

  



Results: 

• Yield: approximately 90 gallons per minute. 

• Arsenic: Low above 320 ft; concentrations increased sharply below 350 ft (up to 24 
µg/L at 585 ft). At the end of pump testing, results were 16 µg/l.  

• Interpretation: Elevated arsenic caused by vertical migration from deeper high-
arsenic zones. Limit future floodplain wells to ~300 ft maximum depth. 

 

Recommendations: 

• Seal below 300 ft to isolate low-arsenic water. 

• Add new perforations between 200–250 ft to produce from the shallow, low-arsenic 
zone. 

 

Test Well 2 (TW-2) – Evergreen Spring Site 

Purpose: Drilled to test a deeper aquifer system indicated by isotope and water-quality 
data as a potential low-arsenic source. 
Depth: 575 feet  Static Water Level: ~45 ft below top of casing 

Subsurface Geology: 

• 0–40 ft: Unconfined sand and gravel 

• 45–55 ft: Clay aquitard 

• 60–500 ft: Main sand and gravel aquifer 

• 500–560 ft: Silty sand aquitard 

• 565–575 ft: Clean gravel (lower aquifer) 

Results: 

• Yield: Projected ~250 gpm sustainable (tested 112 gpm). 

• Arsenic: 2–7 µg/L initially (305–345 ft), rising to 33 µg/L during extended testing. 

• Lower aquifer below 565 ft displayed arsenic <4 µg/L, separated from higher-As 
zones by a 60-ft aquitard. An aquitard is a geologic layer that restricts the flow of 
groundwater from one aquifer to another - essentially, it’s a “slow leak” layer 
between more permeable zones.  



Recommendations: 

• Seal 305–345 ft perforations. 

• Deepen well ~50 ft to target the low-arsenic aquifer below 565 ft. 

• Confirm isolation of this deep aquifer with follow-up testing. 

 

Conclusions  

• Both test wells confirmed multiple aquifers with distinct arsenic profiles. 

• Each test well had significant water quality changes during testing  

• TW-1: Best suited for shallow (<300 ft), low-arsenic production. 

• TW-2: Strong candidate for deep aquifer development below 565 ft. 

• Future well construction should ensure vertical isolation between high- and low-
arsenic zones. 

 

 



 
Report on Arsenic Compliance Actions 

 

November 18, 2025 
Submitted by Jamar Tate, General Manager 

 

Arsenic Levels  

  

The most recent reported samples from Compliance point were taken on October 31, 2025.  The 
results showed arsenic levels at 10 ppb for the month. The third quarter 2025 average is 12 ppb. 
The current Running Annual Average (RAA) is 10.2 ppb. No results for the month of 
November. 

Samples were taken at Well 1B on October 31, 2025. The results from Well 1B were 5ppb.  
Samples were taken for Well 2 on October 31, 2025. The results for Well 2 were 15ppb. The 
third quarter 2025 average for Well 1B is 9 ppb with the RAA of 8 ppb. The third quarter 2025 
average for Well 2 17ppb. No results for the month of November.  

 

Iron and Manganese Compliance Levels 

 The most recent results of Quarterly samples, for the fourth quarter were taken on October 31, 
2025 for Iron were .460 mg/l at Well 1B and 3.21 mg/l at Well 2; results for Manganese were 
.0968 mg/l at Well 1B and .261mg/l at Well 2. (The Secondary Standard for Iron is .300 mg/l. The 
Secondary Standard for Manganese is .05 mg/l.).   



 PECSD Administrative Manager’s Report October 2025 
Gina-Marie Morris 

 
 

• The following liens are active for outstanding charges through 6/30/23: 
o Acct 715-1: $9,783.19 

• 2 liens to be processed 
o Liens are to placed on all amounts 360 days past due. 

The current amounts subject to lien (Amounts past due since 10/15/24) 
 Acct 715-1: $2,685.17 (Total liens $12,468.36) 
 Acct 309-1: $1,199.32 

• Billing:  58 Accounts are past due by over $100 (as of 10/16/25) 
o 1 payment agreements 

Account Payment Amt Agreement Dates Past Due Balance Account Balance 
669-1 $452.25 4/20/25 – 3/20/26 $1,370.42 $2,278.71 

 

o 1 account only payments are through liens; Acct 715-1 
o 1 account remains disconnected for non-payment; Acct 309-1 

• Audit should be presenting the report for review this week 
• Training: Board Secretary / Clerk Conference 
• Reviewed several policies, drafted updates or new policies, sent to legal for review. 
• Added back all the old agenda, minutes, and audits to the website. 

 

Upcoming and ongoing activities and projects: 

• Create an Onboarding program for Board Directors. 
• Create a form for uploading receipts in the field. 
• Create a digital option for volunteer onboarding paperwork. 
• Reconstruct the website under the new domain provider. 
• Complete the digitalization of Ordinances, and Resolutions 
• Archive & destroy old records as appropriate. 
• Organize retained records for easy retrieval. 



Fund
Received This 

Month

Deposits 
Posted Next 

Month

Deposited This 
Month Posted 

this Month

Deposits From 
Prior Month

Total 
Deposited This 

Month

Fees $2,872.75 $342.00 $2,530.75 $13.64 $2,544.39
Overpayment $9,015.41 $0.00 $9,015.41 $1,380.70 $10,396.11
Fire Operational $22,504.33 $579.81 $21,924.52 $1,178.70 $23,103.22
Sewer Debt $9,429.62 $96.36 $9,333.26 $529.98 $9,863.24
Sewer Operational $46,687.36 $827.19 $45,860.17 $3,896.63 $49,756.80
Sewer Reserves $19,401.83 $249.45 $19,152.38 $1,068.87 $20,221.25
Water Debt $55,191.23 $1,211.40 $53,979.83 $3,526.55 $57,506.38
Water Operational $56,549.92 $1,410.64 $55,139.28 $3,181.51 $58,320.79
Water Reserves $16,434.22 $552.27 $15,881.95 $821.35 $16,703.30

$238,086.67 $5,269.12 $232,817.55 $15,597.93 $248,415.48

PECSD Payments Received by Funds
for the month of October 2025

Total Payments Deposited:  $248,415.48
Total Payments Received:  $238,086.67

$31,814 

$33,484 
$-
$-

ACH
Check

Credit Card
Debit Card

Money Order

Payment Methods

$23,294 

$20,461 

$18,139 

$1,612 

$39,917 

Autopay

In Person

Lockbox

Mail

Phone

Portal

Payment Source



UB Max Aged Balance
Past Due Amounts Over $100

As of August 01, 2025

Acct  1-90 Days  91-180 Days Over 180 Days  Balance Notes
116-1          612.97                      -                                -                612.97 
140-1          377.31                      -                                -                377.31 
189-1          415.99                      -                                -                415.99 
194-1          883.29                      -                                -                883.29 
197-1          462.21                      -                                -                462.21 
217-1          883.29                      -                                -                883.29 
269-1          902.43                      -                                -                902.43 
276-1          462.21                      -                                -                462.21 
277-1          247.65                      -                                -                247.65 
281-1          462.21                      -                                -                462.21 
288-1          883.29                      -                                -                883.29 

309-1          530.94              543.62                   2,328.52           3,403.08 *********DISCONNECTED************
Lien Pending

312-1          276.17              340.53                              -                616.70 
340-1          377.31                      -                                -                377.31 
362-1          883.29                  9.59                              -                892.88 
365-1          377.31                      -                                -                377.31 
376-1          513.83                10.18                              -                524.01 
406-1          462.21                      -                                -                462.21 
467-1          507.76                      -                                -                507.76 
468-2          381.38                      -                                -                381.38 
474-1          652.98                12.72                              -                665.70 
484-1          513.94                10.26                              -                524.20 
488-1          462.21                      -                                -                462.21 
489-1          462.21                      -                                -                462.21 
495-1          462.21                      -                                -                462.21 
506-1          340.79                      -                                -                340.79 
518-1          969.86                      -                                -                969.86 
523-1          462.21                      -                                -                462.21 
524-1       1,385.43                      -                                -             1,385.43 
557-2          892.78                      -                                -                892.78 
562-1          247.65                      -                                -                247.65 
577-1          462.21                      -                                -                462.21 
589-1          462.21                      -                                -                462.21 
596-1          483.29                      -                                -                483.29 
605-1          377.31                      -                                -                377.31 
615-1          462.21                      -                                -                462.21 
625-1          462.21                      -                                -                462.21 
626-1          383.29                      -                                -                383.29 
665-1          883.29                      -                                -                883.29 

669-1          883.29              487.13                              -             1,370.42 

Payment Plan, $452.25 per month, Sep 
and Oct outstanding.  Per Ord 2024-A 
Five (5) Day Shut Off Notice to be 
posted.

671-1          883.29                      -                                -                883.29 
693-1          507.76                      -                                -                507.76 
695-1          247.65                      -                                -                247.65 
696-1          462.21                      -                                -                462.21 
697-1          247.65                      -                                -                247.65 

715-1          554.10              497.10                 14,067.17         15,118.37 

Only payments on this account are 
through the Lien.  Undeveloped 
property.  Customer is unresponsive to 
all collection attempts.  Property up for 
auction.

733-1          247.65                      -                                -                247.65 
792-1          883.29                  6.07                              -                889.36 
794-1          883.29                      -                                -                883.29 
803-1          462.21                      -                                -                462.21 



UB Max Aged Balance
Past Due Amounts Over $100

As of August 01, 2025

Acct  1-90 Days  91-180 Days Over 180 Days  Balance Notes
813-1          959.37                      -                                -                959.37 
830-1          883.29                      -                                -                883.29 
837-1          377.31                      -                                -                377.31 
838-1          247.65                      -                                -                247.65 
883-1          377.31                      -                                -                377.31 
889-1          883.29                17.32                              -                900.61 
893-1          462.21                      -                                -                462.21 
898-1          415.04                      -                                -                415.04 

 $ 32,599.20  $       1,934.52  $             16,395.69  $     50,929.41 



Plumas Eureka CSD
Cash Report

Month of October 2025

Customer Payments 23,218     Customer Payments -             Customer Payments 133,763   Customer Payments 81,106   
Interest Income 1,011        Interest Income -             Interest Income 8,770        Interest Income 2,086     
Other Income** 42,473     Other Income -             Other Income -                Other Income -             
Total Cash Received 66,702     Total Cash Received -             Total Cash Received 142,533   Total Cash Received 83,193   

Employees/Volunteers 3,301        Employees -             Employees 23,073     Employees 24,379   
Insurance 2,267        Insurance 40          Insurance 2,594        Insurance 2,644     
Utilities 227           Utilities -             Utilities 4,836        Utilities 3,651     
Tools, Supplies, Repairs, Maint 792           Tools, Supplies, Repairs, Maint 69          Tools, Supplies, Repairs, Maint 169           Tools, Supplies, Repairs, Maint 490        
Lab /  Chemicals / Sludge -                Lab /  Chemicals / Sludge Lab /  Chemicals / Sludge 240           Lab /  Chemicals / Sludge 841        
Training, Travel, Subscriptions 3,606        Training, Travel, Subscriptions -             Training, Travel, Subscriptions 1,635        Training, Travel, Subscriptions 1,854     
Professional Services 117           Professional Services 1,970     Professional Services 906           Professional Services 131        
Depreciation -                Depreciation -             Depreciation 3,662        Depreciation 7,770     
Office/other 2,120        Office/other -             Office/other 2,878        Office/other 3,714     
Total Expenses 12,429     Total Expenses 2,079     Total Expenses 39,993     Total Expenses 45,475   
Total Paid 29,692     Total Paid 2,089     Total Paid 42,563     Total Paid 36,241   

Wastewater Enterprise
Initial Cash Balance: $489,112

Revenue

Expenses

Final Cash Balance: $536,064

Water Enterprise
Initial Cash Balance: $1,670,118

Revenue

Expenses

Final Cash Balance: $1,770,088

District Maint
Initial Cash Balance: $12,673

Revenue

Expenses

Final Cash Balance: $10,584

Fire Department
Initial Cash Balance: $271,980

Revenue

Expenses

Final Cash Balance: $308,990

**Green Fire**

Chart Title

Employees/Volunteers Insurance Utilities Tools, Supplies, Repairs, Maint Lab /  Chemicals / Sludge Training, Travel, Subscriptions Professional Services Depreciation Office/other

58%

7%

12%
0%

1%

4%

2% 9%
7%

0%
2%

0% 3% 0%

95%

0% 0%

54%

6%
8%1%

2%
4%

0%

17%

8%

27%

18%

2%

6%

0%

29%

1%

0% 17%



Plumas Eureka CSD
Cash Report

Month of October 2025

 

    

 

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

 -

 50,000

 100,000

 150,000

 200,000

 250,000

 300,000

 350,000

Fire Department Cash

Checking LAIF CAMP

US Bank - T Bills CLASS Total Cash

 (2,000)

 -

 2,000

 4,000

 6,000

 8,000

 10,000

 12,000

 14,000

Ax
is 

Ti
tle

District Maintenance Cash

Checking LAIF CAMP US Bank - T Bills CLASS

 -
 200,000
 400,000
 600,000
 800,000

 1,000,000
 1,200,000
 1,400,000
 1,600,000
 1,800,000
 2,000,000

Water Enterprise Cash

Checking LAIF CAMP

US Bank - T Bills CLASS Total Cash

 -

 100,000

 200,000

 300,000

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

Wastewater Cash

Checking LAIF CAMP

US Bank - T Bills CLASS Total Cash



Plumas Eureka CSD
Cash Report

Month of October 2025

Fire Department Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 Oct-25
Checking 260,149      218,615      164,146      92,504        42,407        47,398        37,897        60,047        59,056        89,110        23,510        16,641        52,641        
LAIF 12,559        12,559        12,559        12,706        12,706        12,706        12,893        12,893        13,034        13,034        13,034        13,034        13,177        
CAMP 19,988        19,988        20,149        20,227        20,297        32,353        32,470        32,590        66,056        66,304        106,675      107,058      107,445      
US Bank - T Bills 19,624        19,720        19,936        -                   
CLASS -                   131,435      131,851      132,343      132,820      133,311      133,787      134,281      134,774      135,247      135,728      
Total Cash 312,321      270,883      216,790      256,871      207,260      224,800      216,081      238,841      271,934      302,730      277,994      271,980      308,991      

Dist Maint Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 Oct-25
Checking (673)            (1,086)         (1,279)         8,426          8,087          5,104          4,995          510              7,961          7,891          5,318          12,673        10,584        
LAIF
CAMP
US Bank - T Bills
CLASS
Total Cash (673)            (1,086)         (1,279)         8,426          8,087          5,104          4,995          510              7,961          7,891          5,318          12,673        10,584        

Water Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 Oct-25
Checking 282,339      282,399      295,027      225,505      118,827      138,287      205,891      151,712      111,893      165,624      115,870      114,029      205,228      
LAIF 272,602      272,602      272,602      425,772      425,772      425,772      429,839      429,839      434,549      434,549      434,549      434,549      439,295      
CAMP 433,375      433,375      436,847      438,536      440,054      447,872      458,713      480,478      482,168      483,975      541,657      543,599      545,566      
US Bank - T Bills 426,528      428,616      433,323      -                   
CLASS -                   434,152      563,425      565,528      567,569      569,668      571,702      573,812      575,920      577,942      579,998      
Total Cash 1,414,844   1,416,992   1,437,799   1,523,965   1,548,077   1,577,459   1,662,013   1,631,697   1,600,312   1,657,960   1,667,995   1,670,118   1,770,087   

Wastewater Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 Oct-25
Checking 127,174      143,216      107,868      126,378      117,993      105,755      135,966      100,966      40,492        83,170        83,091        68,995        113,860      
LAIF 75,730        75,730        75,730        76,611        76,611        76,611        77,741        77,741        78,593        78,593        78,593        78,593        79,452        
CAMP 133,075      133,075      134,141      134,659      135,125      141,803      160,759      171,389      202,098      202,855      203,564      204,294      205,033      
US Bank - T Bills 131,017      131,659      133,105      -                   
CLASS -                   133,360      133,782      134,281      134,767      135,265      135,748      136,249      136,750      137,230      137,718      
Total Cash 466,996      483,679      450,843      471,007      463,510      458,450      509,232      485,361      456,931      500,867      501,998      489,112      536,064      



Plumas Eureka CSD
FY 25/26 Operational Budget - Review

As of October 31, 2025  (33% of year)

Revenue Actual Budget %
Customer Payments 85,442     173,543   49%
Interest Income 3,472       3,056       114%
County Tax Income -            17,000     0%
Grant, Donation, & Fund Raising 20,061     -                
Other Income -            -                
Wildfire Income 236,076   -                
Total Cash Revenue 345,051   193,599   178%

Expenses Actual Budget %
Employees/Volunteers 17,612     49,384     36%
Wildfire Personnel Payment 180,807   -                
Insurance 8,893       53,000     17%
Utilities 1,027       5,200       20%
Tools, Supplies, Repairs, Maint, Equip 8,561       36,000     24%
Training, Travel, Safety, Subscriptions 10,365     12,875     81%
Professional Services 2,646       12,160     22%
Office/other 4,488       14,925     30%
Capital Outlay 50,342     60,000     84%
Total Expenses 284,741   243,544   117%

Revenue Actual Budget
County Tax Income -            20,000     0%
Property Rental -            2,500       0%
Other Income -            -                
Total Cash Revenue -                22,500     0%

Expenses Actual Budget
Employees 107           1,678       6%
Insurance 79             565           14%
Tools, Supplies, Repairs, Maint, Equip 2,731       8,300       33%
Professional Services 1,970       3,000       66%
Office/other -            30             0%
Capital Outlay -            -                
Total Expenses 4,887       13,573     36%

Actual Net Change: ($4,887)

Fire Fund

Actual Net Change: $60,309

District Maint Fund

49%

114%
0%

 -

 50,000

 100,000

 150,000

 200,000

 250,000

Fire Fund - Income

Actual Budget

36% 17% 20% 24% 81% 22% 30%

84%

 -
 20,000
 40,000
 60,000
 80,000

 100,000
 120,000
 140,000
 160,000
 180,000
 200,000

Fire Fund - Expenses

Actual Budget

0% 0%
 -

 5,000

 10,000

 15,000

 20,000

 25,000

County
Tax

Income

Property
Rental

Other
Income

Dist Maint - Income

Actual Budget

6% 14%

33%
66%

0%
 -

 1,000
 2,000
 3,000
 4,000
 5,000
 6,000
 7,000
 8,000
 9,000

District Maint - Expenses

Actual Budget



Plumas Eureka CSD
FY 25/26 Operational Budget - Review

As of October 31, 2025  (33% of year)

Revenue Actual Budget %
Customer Payments 229,708   432,182   53%
Interest Income 724           3,801       19%
Other Income -            -                
Total Cash Revenue 230,432   435,983   53%

Expenses Actual Budget %
Employees 75,303     254,473   30%
Insurance 12,944     45,509     28%
Utilities 24,112     57,600     42%
Tools, Supplies, Repairs, Maint, Equip 1,453       15,000     10%
Lab / Chemicals 6,392       33,000     19%
Training, Travel, Safety, Subscriptions 2,443       8,200       30%
Professional Services 3,935       16,660     24%
Depreciation Expense 14,341     55,000     26%
Office/other 5,143       36,050     14%
Total Expenses 146,067   521,492   28%

Revenue Actual Budget %
Customer Payments 195,003   358,908   54%
Interest Income 306           401           76%
Other Income -            -                
Total Cash Revenue 195,309   359,309   54%

Expenses Actual Budget %
Employees 78,289     260,696   30%
Insurance 7,936       51,660     15%
Utilities 15,326     57,800     27%
Tools, Supplies, Repairs, Maint, Equip 942           17,000     6%
Lab / Sludge 11,741     55,000     21%
Training, Travel, Safety, Subscriptions 3,797       7,400       51%
Professional Services 3,009       16,660     18%
Depreciation Expense 30,775     75,000     41%
Office/other 5,663       43,250     13%
Total Expenses 157,478   584,466   27%

Actual Net Change: $37,832

Water Enterprise Fund

Actual Net Change: $84,365

Wastewater Enterprise Fund

54%

76%
 -

 50,000

 100,000

 150,000

 200,000

 250,000

 300,000

 350,000

 400,000

Customer
Payments

Interest
Income

Other
Income

Wastewater Fund - Income

Actual Budget

53%

19%
 -

 50,000
 100,000
 150,000
 200,000
 250,000
 300,000
 350,000
 400,000
 450,000
 500,000

Water Fund - Income

Actual Budget

30%

28% 42%
10% 19% 30% 24% 26% 14%

 -

 50,000

 100,000

 150,000

 200,000

 250,000

 300,000

Water Fund - Expenses

Actual Budget

30%

15% 27% 6% 21% 51% 18%
41%

13%
 -

 50,000

 100,000

 150,000

 200,000

 250,000

 300,000

Wastewater Fund - Expenses

Actual Budget



Plumas Eureka CSD
FY 25/26 Capital Expenditures Budget - Review

As of October 31, 2025 

Project / Purchase Fund

Remaining 
Expenses for 
Full Project

25/26 
Expected 
Expenses

25/26 
Expenses to 

date

Outstanding 
25/26 

Expense
USDA Loans Wastewater D 1,444,760$      62,818$           9,582$              53,236$           

Driveway Repairs (approved FY 24/25) Fire 30,000$           30,000$           29,875$           125$                 
Wastewater R 15,000$           15,000$           14,938$           63$                   
Water R 15,000$           15,000$           14,938$           63$                   

60,000$           60,000$           59,750$           250$                 

Water Treatment Plant Water R 8,200,000$      500,000$         8,825$              491,175$         

Electrical Repair - Wells Water R 10,000$           10,000$           -$                  10,000$           

Telemetry Upgrade Water R 30,000$           30,000$           -$                  30,000$           

Manholes Wastewater R 75,000$           75,000$           -$                  75,000$           

Improvements on Unit 9178 Fire 20,000$           20,000$           20,467$           (467)$                

-$                  -$                  

Work Vehicle Replacement Water R 40,000$           40,000$           40,000$           
(approved FY 24/25) Wastewater R 40,000$           40,000$           40,000$           

80,000$           80,000$           -$                  80,000$           

Fire Hydrants (2 per year) Water R 1,000,000$      20,000$           20,000$           

Water Storage Tank Maint Water R 100,000$         100,000$         100,000$         

Unexpected Repairs & Maint Wastewater R 50,000$           6,251$              43,749$           
Water R 50,000$           20,952$           29,048$           
Fire 30,000$           -$                  30,000$           

130,000$         27,203$           102,797$         

Wastewater Water Wastewater Water Fire
Budgeted Customer Payments  $         148,143  $         129,238  $           74,591  $         386,378 

Budgeted Interest Income                  2,611               37,930               10,134               14,653 
Total Budgeted Income             150,753             167,168               84,725             401,031 

Total Budgeted Expenditures 180,000            765,000           62,818              -                         80,000$           
 Budgeted Net Change (29,247)$          (597,832)$        21,907$           401,031$         

Current Customer Payments  $           33,477  $           30,528  $           29,476  $           80,396 
Current Interest Income                     789                 8,432                 2,686                 2,947 

Total Current Income                34,266               38,960               32,161               83,343 
Total Current Expenditures 21,188              44,714              9,582                -                         50,342$           

Current Net Change 13,078$           (5,754)$            22,579$           83,343$           
% of Budgeted Income 23% 23% 38% 21%

% of Budgeted Expenditures 12% 6% 15% 63%

Reserves Debt



Fixed Assets-YTD Rollforward # Mths - YTD: 4

10/31/25

Water - Work in Progress 8/8/25 - Investigation of possible alternate site for the WTP $2,335.25

Fire Vehicles 8/27/25 - Brush Truck Improvements (Unit 9178) $20,467

Water Wells / Buildings 9/24/25 Driveway @ Firehouse / Office, and around the mailboxes, was repaived $14,937.50 (Total $33,000)

Sewer Plants / Buildings 9/24/25 Driveway @ Firehouse / Office, and around the mailboxes, was repaived $14,937.50 (Total $33,000)

Fire House 9/24/25 Driveway @ Firehouse / Office, and around the mailboxes, was repaived $29,875.00 (Total $33,000)

Water General Equipment 9/26/25 Disconnect and Transfer Switch $4,558.71 (Total $9,117.42)

Sewer General Equipment 9/26/25 Disconnect and Transfer Switch $4,558.71 (Total $9,117.42)

Fire General Equipment 10/16/25 Corrected Fire Turn outs from Capital to Uniform per Auditor's Comments (Total $49,146.99) Dep ($2,457.35)

Water - Work in Progress 9/5/25 - Investigation of possible alternate site for the WTP $249)

Water - Work in Progress 9/5/25 WTP permitting Memo from Engineers ($1,222.75)

Water - Work in Progress 10/31/25  DOWL Treatment Plant - Final Drawing and updates, updates to design report, PM items $18,609.75

Water - Work in Progress 10/02/25 DOWL Treatment Plant - Permitting Memo, drawing and specs updates, correspondance $5,017.75



Fixed Assets Original Costs

Beginning Balance Ending Balance G/L Balance

All 6/30/2025 Additions Reclass Adjustments Accruals Disposals Impairment 10/31/25 10/31/25 Difference

Land 42,000.00  $                    42,000.00  $            42,000.00  $                   -                                     

Water Distribution System 787,902.00  $                  787,902.00  $          787,902.00  $                 -                                     

Water Wells / Buildings 1,451,603.95  $               14,937.50                    1,466,541.45  $       1,466,541.45  $              -                                     

Water General Equipment 290,219.85  $                  4,558.71                      294,778.56  $          294,778.56  $                 -                                     

Water Intangible Assets 16,463.00  $                    16,463.00  $            16,463.00  $                   -                                     

Water - Work in Progress 647,678.03  $                  27,434.50                    675,112.53  $          675,112.53  $                 -                                     

Sewer Collection 1,009,222.23  $               1,009,222.23  $       1,009,222.23  $              -                                     

Sewer Disposal 639,253.00  $                  639,253.00  $          639,253.00  $                 -                                     

Sewer General Equipment 193,557.86  $                  4,558.71                      198,116.57  $          198,116.57  $                 -                                     

Sewer Plants / Buildings 2,900,919.00  $               14,937.50                    2,915,856.50  $       2,915,856.50  $              -                                     

Sewer Intangible Assets 8,231.50  $                      8,231.50  $              8,231.50  $                     -                                     

Sewer - Work in Progress -   $                              -   $                      -   $                              -                                     

General District Equipment 3,873.64  $                      3,873.64  $              3,873.64  $                     -                                     

Fire Vehicles 241,257.21  $                  20,467.00                    261,724.21  $          261,724.20  $                 (0.01)                                

Fire General Equipment 336,788.66  $                  (49,146.99)             287,641.67  $          287,641.67  $                 -                                     

Fire House 127,614.00  $                  29,875.00                    157,489.00  $          157,489.00  $                 -                                     

Fire - Work in Progress -   $                              -   $                      -   $                              -                                     

Costs All Assets 8,696,583.93  $               116,768.92  $              -   $                                   (49,146.99) $          -   $                      -   $                          -   $                  8,764,205.86  $       8,764,205.85  $              (0.01) $                             

Accumulated Depreciation

Beginning Balance Ending Balance G/L Balance

All 6/30/2025 YTD Depreciation
Accum. Depr of 

Assets 
Sold/Disposed

Adjustments 10/31/25 10/31/25 Difference

Water Distribution System 632,052.14  $                  2,118.74                      634,170.88  $          634,170.90  $              0.02                  

Water Wells / Buildings 1,038,200.74  $               7,525.66                      1,045,726.40  $       1,045,726.40  $           -                   

Water General Equipment 162,084.55  $                  4,696.08                      166,780.63  $          166,780.63  $              -                   

Water Intangible Amortization -   $                              -                               -   $                      -   $                          -                   

Sewer Collection 402,149.65  $                  9,551.58                      411,701.23  $          411,701.05  $              (0.18)                

Sewer Disposal 634,290.50  $                  365.83                         634,656.33  $          634,656.33  $              -                   

Sewer General Equipment 118,868.68  $                  3,650.58                      122,519.26  $          122,519.25  $              (0.01)                

Sewer Plants / Buildings 1,472,606.65  $               17,207.04                    1,489,813.69  $       1,489,813.68  $           (0.01)                

Sewer Intangible Amortization -   $                              -                               -   $                      -   $                          -                   

General District Equipment 290.52  $                         129.12                         419.64  $                 419.64  $                     -                   

Fire Vehicles 78,637.77  $                    4,685.17                      83,322.94  $            83,322.94  $                -                   

Fire General Equipment 181,327.85  $                  8,341.71                      (2,457.35)               187,212.21  $          187,212.21  $              -                   

Fire House 95,686.95  $                    725.90                         96,412.85  $            96,412.85  $                -                   

AD All Assets 4,816,196.00  $               58,997.40  $                -   $                                   (2,457.35) $            4,872,736.06  $       4,872,735.88  $           (0.18)                



Net Fixed Assets

Beginning Balance Net Ending Balance Net G/L Bal

All 6/30/2025 Additions YTD Depreciation Disposal  - 
NBV Reclasses Net Adjustment Net Accruals Impairment 10/31/25 10/31/25 Difference

Land 42,000.00  $                    -                               -                                        -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           42,000.00  $                   42,000.00  $                     -                             

Water Distribution System 155,849.86  $                  -                               (2,118.74)                            -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           153,731.12  $                 153,731.10  $                   (0.02)                        

Water Wells / Buildings 413,403.21  $                  14,937.50                    (7,525.66)                            -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           420,815.05  $                 420,815.05  $                   -                             

Water General Equipment 128,135.30  $                  4,558.71                      (4,696.08)                            -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           127,997.93  $                 127,997.93  $                   -                             

Water Intangible Assets 16,463.00  $                    -                               -                                        -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           16,463.00  $                   16,463.00  $                     -                             

Water - Work in Progress 647,678.03  $                  27,434.50                    -                                        -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           675,112.53  $                 675,112.53  $                   -                             

Net Water Assets 1,403,529.40  $         46,930.71               (14,340.48)                    -                       -                       -                           -                   -                       1,436,119.63  $         1,436,119.61  $          (0.02)                   

Sewer Collection 607,072.58  $                  -                               (9,551.58)                            -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           597,521.00  $                 597,521.18  $                   0.18                          

Sewer Disposal 4,962.50  $                      -                               (365.83)                               -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           4,596.67  $                     4,596.67  $                       -                             

Sewer General Equipment 74,689.18  $                    4,558.71                      (3,650.58)                            -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           75,597.31  $                   75,597.32  $                     0.01                          

Sewer Plants / Buildings 1,428,312.35  $               14,937.50                    (17,207.04)                          -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           1,426,042.81  $              1,426,042.82  $                0.01                          

Sewer Intangible Assets 8,231.50  $                      -                               -                                        -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           8,231.50  $                     8,231.50  $                       -                             

Sewer - Work in Progress -   $                              -                               -                                        -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           -   $                              -   $                                -                             

Net Sewer Assets 2,123,268.11  $         19,496.21               (30,775.02)                    -                       -                       -                           -                   -                       2,111,989.29  $         2,111,989.49  $          0.20                      

General District Equipment 3,583.12  $                      -                               (129.12)                               -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           3,454.00  $                     3,454.00  $                       -                             

Fire Vehicles 162,619.44  $                  20,467.00                    (4,685.17)                            -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           178,401.27  $                 178,401.26  $                   (0.01)                        

Fire General Equipment 155,460.81  $                  -                               (8,341.71)                            -                           -                           (46,689.64)                 -                       -                           100,429.46  $                 100,429.46  $                   -                             

Fire House 31,927.05  $                    29,875.00                    (725.90)                               -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           61,076.15  $                   61,076.15  $                     -                             

Fire - Work in Progress -   $                              -                               -                                        -                           -                           -                               -                       -                           -   $                              -   $                                -                             

Net Gov Assets 353,590.42  $            50,342.00               (13,881.90)                    -                       -                       (46,689.64)            -                   -                       343,360.88  $            343,360.87  $             (0.01)                   

Net All Asset 3,880,387.93  $         116,768.92  $         (58,997.40) $                 -   $                  -   $                  (46,689.64) $         -   $              -   $                  3,891,469.80  $         3,891,469.97  $          0.17  $                  



Plumas Eureka CSD
Investment Summary

For October 2025

Investment
Balance End of 

July 2025
Interest 

Rate
Interest 

Amt End of August
Interest 

Rate Interest Amt
End of 

September
Interest 

Rate
Interest 

Amt
End of 

September

Total
Interest

& Ave Rate
LAIF 526,175.93      526,175.93       526,175.93      4.37% 5,747.85     531,923.78      $5,748   4.37%
CAMP 753,133.96      4.73% 2,967.07  851,897.03       4.18% 2,967.07       854,950.52      4.34% 3,093.52     858,044.04      $9,028   4.42%
CLASS 844,341.61      4.41% 3,101.91  847,443.52       4.21% 2,975.74       850,419.26      4.27% 3,025.56     853,444.82      $9,103   4.3%

Totals 2,043,173.89   5,624.78  2,112,033.67    11,617.83     2,123,651.50   11,866.93  2,243,412.64   

Checking LAIF CAMP CLASS Balances
108,657  186,236   262,101             289,476  846,471$      

22,286    247,206   246,438             281,378  797,307$      
66,167    5,853       37,027               9,144      118,191$      

197,110  439,295   545,566             579,998  1,761,969$  
40,767    61,890     130,745             119,478  352,880$      
58,009    14,376     59,634               13,955    145,975$      

4,563      3,185       14,655               4,285      26,688$        
103,339  79,452     205,033             137,718  525,543$      
300,449  518,747   750,599             717,717  2,287,511$  

47,515    13,177     107,445             135,728  303,865$      
10,584    10,584$        
58,099    13,177     107,445             135,728  314,449$      

358,548  531,924   858,044             853,445  2,601,960$  

Wastewater Reserve

Current Balances 11/14/25
Water Debt / WTP
Water Reserve
Water Operations

Total Water
Wastewater Debt

Overall Total

Wastewater Operations
Total Wastewater
Total Enterprise

Fire
District Maintenance

Total Governmental



 Plumas Eureka CSD
 Check Detail

October 2025

Type Num Date Name Account Class Paid Amount Original Amount

Liability Check 10/14/2025 QuickBooks Payroll Service 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -9,019.47

QuickBooks Payroll Service 20203 · Direct Deposit Liabilities -9,019.47 9,019.47

-9,019.47 9,019.47

Liability Check 10/28/2025 QuickBooks Payroll Service 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -9,198.18

QuickBooks Payroll Service 20203 · Direct Deposit Liabilities -9,198.18 9,198.18

-9,198.18 9,198.18

Liability Check E-pay 10/01/2025 EDD 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -432.01

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -144.32 144.32

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -287.69 287.69

-432.01 432.01

Liability Check E-pay 10/01/2025 U.S. TREASURY 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -1,499.78

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -1,151.00 1,151.00

20206 · Payroll Liabilities - Employer -174.39 174.39

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -174.39 174.39

-1,499.78 1,499.78

Liability Check E-pay 10/15/2025 EDD 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -437.62

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -144.80 144.80

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -292.82 292.82

-437.62 437.62

Liability Check E-pay 10/15/2025 U.S. TREASURY 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -1,511.94

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -1,162.00 1,162.00

20206 · Payroll Liabilities - Employer -174.97 174.97

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -174.97 174.97

-1,511.94 1,511.94

Liability Check E-pay 10/28/2025 EDD 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -1,454.69

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -225.67 225.67

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -1,229.02 1,229.02

-1,454.69 1,454.69

Liability Check E-pay 10/28/2025 U.S. TREASURY 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -6,583.24

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -3,706.00 3,706.00

20200 · Payroll Liabilities -1,165.94 1,165.94

20200 · Payroll Liabilities -1,165.94 1,165.94

20206 · Payroll Liabilities - Employer -272.68 272.68

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -272.68 272.68

-6,583.24 6,583.24

 Page 11 of 23



 Plumas Eureka CSD
 Check Detail

October 2025

Type Num Date Name Account Class Paid Amount Original Amount

Liability Check E-pay 10/28/2025 EDD 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -112.00

20206 · Payroll Liabilities - Employer -7.00 7.00

20206 · Payroll Liabilities - Employer -105.00 105.00

-112.00 112.00

Liability Check E-pay 10/29/2025 EDD 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -453.00

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -147.67 147.67

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -305.33 305.33

-453.00 453.00

Liability Check E-pay 10/29/2025 U.S. TREASURY 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -1,557.86

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -1,201.00 1,201.00

20206 · Payroll Liabilities - Employer -178.43 178.43

20205 · Payroll Liabilities - Employee -178.43 178.43

-1,557.86 1,557.86

Bill Pmt -Check 2843 10/21/2025 Ben Dominguez - Fire 11075 · Fire Department Checking Acct -5.00

General Journal Fire Pay 09/30/2025 60053 · Training Reimbursements GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -5.00 5.00

-5.00 5.00

Bill Pmt -Check 2844 10/21/2025 Cyndy Hallam - Fire 11075 · Fire Department Checking Acct -222.00

General Journal Fire Pay 09/30/2025 60051 · Stipends GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -200.00 200.00

60052 · Call Reimbursements GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -22.00 22.00

-222.00 222.00

Bill Pmt -Check 2845 10/21/2025 JEFF TRAIN - Fire 11075 · Fire Department Checking Acct -200.00

General Journal Fire Pay 09/30/2025 60051 · Stipends GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -200.00 200.00

-200.00 200.00

Bill Pmt -Check 2846 10/21/2025 JOHN SEA - Fire 11075 · Fire Department Checking Acct -144.00

General Journal Fire Pay 09/30/2025 60051 · Stipends GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -100.00 100.00

60052 · Call Reimbursements GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -44.00 44.00

-144.00 144.00

Bill Pmt -Check 2847 10/21/2025 Mark Harri - Fire 11075 · Fire Department Checking Acct -5.00

General Journal Fire Pay 09/30/2025 60053 · Training Reimbursements GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -5.00 5.00

-5.00 5.00

Bill Pmt -Check 2848 10/21/2025 Mike Egan - Fire 11075 · Fire Department Checking Acct -22.00

General Journal Fire Pay 09/30/2025 60052 · Call Reimbursements GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -22.00 22.00

-22.00 22.00

Bill Pmt -Check 2850 10/21/2025 RICHARD MACHADO - Fire 11075 · Fire Department Checking Acct -222.00

General Journal Fire Pay 09/30/2025 60051 · Stipends GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -200.00 200.00

 Page 12 of 23



 Plumas Eureka CSD
 Check Detail

October 2025

Type Num Date Name Account Class Paid Amount Original Amount

60052 · Call Reimbursements GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -22.00 22.00

-222.00 222.00

Bill Pmt -Check 2851 10/21/2025 STEVE MUNSEN - Fire 11075 · Fire Department Checking Acct -1,271.00

General Journal Fire Pay 09/30/2025 60051 · Stipends GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -1,200.00 1,200.00

60052 · Call Reimbursements GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -66.00 66.00

60053 · Training Reimbursements GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -5.00 5.00

-1,271.00 1,271.00

Bill Pmt -Check 2852 10/21/2025 Tom Connolly - Fire 11075 · Fire Department Checking Acct -149.00

General Journal Fire Pay 09/30/2025 60051 · Stipends GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -100.00 100.00

60052 · Call Reimbursements GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -44.00 44.00

60053 · Training Reimbursements GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -5.00 5.00

-149.00 149.00

Bill Pmt -Check 2853 10/21/2025 BURTON'S FIRE, INC. 11075 · Fire Department Checking Acct -181.92

General Journal S 69360 10/01/2025 65002 · Vehicle Maintenance GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -181.92 181.92

-181.92 181.92

Bill Pmt -Check 2855 10/21/2025 Plumas Pines REC Center 11075 · Fire Department Checking Acct -100.00

General Journal 375140A-IN 10/15/2025 60210 · Travel and Training GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -100.00 100.00

-100.00 100.00

Bill Pmt -Check 19035 10/21/2025 ANTHONY CAMPBELL/V 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -25.00

General Journal Mthly-Anth 10/06/2025 67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -12.50 12.50

General Journal Mthly-Anth 10/06/2025 67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -12.50 12.50

-25.00 25.00

Bill Pmt -Check 19036 10/21/2025 Gina-Marie Morris 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -35.00

General Journal Mthly-Gina 10/06/2025 67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -12.50 12.50

67003 · Internet ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -5.00 5.00

General Journal Mthly-Gina 10/06/2025 67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -12.50 12.50

67003 · Internet ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -5.00 5.00

-35.00 35.00

Bill Pmt -Check 19037 10/21/2025 JAMAR TATE 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -35.00

General Journal Mthly-Jamar 10/06/2025 67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -12.50 12.50

67003 · Internet ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -5.00 5.00

General Journal Mthly-Jamar 10/06/2025 67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -12.50 12.50

67003 · Internet ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -5.00 5.00

-35.00 35.00

Bill Pmt -Check 19038 10/21/2025 LEW PRINCE 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -25.00

General Journal Mthly-Lew 10/06/2025 67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -12.50 12.50

 Page 13 of 23



 Plumas Eureka CSD
 Check Detail

October 2025

Type Num Date Name Account Class Paid Amount Original Amount

General Journal Mthly-Lew 10/06/2025 67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -12.50 12.50

-25.00 25.00

Bill Pmt -Check 19039 10/21/2025 AMERIGAS 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -508.75

General Journal 3181721482 09/28/2025 67004 · Propane ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -116.49 116.49

General Journal 3181721482 09/28/2025 67004 · Propane ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -116.49 116.49

General Journal 3181721482 09/28/2025 67004 · Propane GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -116.49 116.49

General Journal 3181797917 09/30/2025 67004 · Propane ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -53.09 53.09

General Journal 3181797917 09/30/2025 67004 · Propane ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -53.09 53.09

General Journal 3181797917 09/30/2025 67004 · Propane GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -53.10 53.10

-508.75 508.75

Bill Pmt -Check 19040 10/21/2025 ANTHONY CAMPBELL/V 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -23.59

General Journal Reimburse 10/03/2025 60210 · Travel and Training ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -219.80 219.80

20114 · VISA_ANTHONY 9966 ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations 28.95 -28.95

20114 · VISA_ANTHONY 9966 ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations 167.26 -167.26

-23.59 23.59

Bill Pmt -Check 19041 10/21/2025 AT&T 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -203.11

General Journal 5308360126 09/28/2025 67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -203.11 203.11

-203.11 203.11

Bill Pmt -Check 19042 10/21/2025 Barry Buchholtz 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -385.00

General Journal 09.23.2025 10/01/2025 66006 · INFRASTRUCTURE MAINTENANCEENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -385.00 385.00

-385.00 385.00

Bill Pmt -Check 19043 10/21/2025 BB&K 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -3,036.20

General Journal 1042697 10/14/2025 69002 · Legal Services ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -75.37 75.37

69002 · Legal Services ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -678.30 678.30

69002 · Legal Services ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -21.53 21.53

General Journal 1042697 10/14/2025 69002 · Legal Services ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -75.37 75.37

69002 · Legal Services ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -21.53 21.53

General Journal 1042697 10/14/2025 69002 · Legal Services GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -75.37 75.37

69002 · Legal Services GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -21.53 21.53

General Journal 1042697 10/14/2025 69002 · Legal Services GOVERNMENT:DISTRICT PROPERTY MAINT -1,970.30 1,970.30

General Journal 1042697 10/14/2025 69002 · Legal Services ENTERPRISE:Water:RESERVES -96.90 96.90

-3,036.20 3,036.20

Bill Pmt -Check 19044 10/21/2025 CALNET3 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -243.01

General Journal 9391019050 10/12/2025 67002 · Phone GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -6.62 6.62

67002 · Phone GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -15.08 15.08

67002 · Phone GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -32.85 32.85

General Journal 9391019050 10/12/2025 67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -6.61 6.61

67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -15.08 15.08

 Page 14 of 23



 Plumas Eureka CSD
 Check Detail

October 2025

Type Num Date Name Account Class Paid Amount Original Amount

67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -32.85 32.85

67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -67.62 67.62

General Journal 9391019050 10/12/2025 67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -6.61 6.61

67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -11.76 11.76

67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -15.08 15.08

67002 · Phone ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -32.85 32.85

-243.01 243.01

Bill Pmt -Check 19046 10/21/2025 DIGITALPATH BUSINESS SERVICES 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -15.00

General Journal Digitalpath 10/12/2025 67003 · Internet ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -6.50 6.50

General Journal Digitalpath 10/12/2025 67003 · Internet ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -6.50 6.50

General Journal Digitalpath 10/12/2025 67003 · Internet GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -2.00 2.00

-15.00 15.00

Bill Pmt -Check 19047 10/21/2025 DOWL ENGINEERING 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -5,017.75

General Journal 30222.21-11 10/02/2025 14500 · Water Construction in Progress ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -5,017.75 5,017.75

32001 · Retained Earnings ENTERPRISE:Water:RESERVES -5,017.75 5,017.75

30000 · INVESTMENT IN FIXED ASSETS ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 5,017.75 -5,017.75

-5,017.75 5,017.75

Bill Pmt -Check 19048 10/21/2025 FASIS (FRMS) 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -7,545.25

General Journal FRMS00514 10/01/2025 60152 · Workmans Comp Insurance GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -2,267.04 2,267.04

General Journal FRMS00514 10/01/2025 60152 · Workmans Comp Insurance ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -2,594.25 2,594.25

General Journal FRMS00514 10/01/2025 60152 · Workmans Comp Insurance ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -2,644.35 2,644.35

General Journal FRMS00514 10/01/2025 60152 · Workmans Comp Insurance GOVERNMENT:DISTRICT PROPERTY MAINT -39.61 39.61

-7,545.25 7,545.25

Bill Pmt -Check 19049 10/21/2025 FRUIT GROWERS LAB ENVIRONMENTAL 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -1,283.00

General Journal 579486A 09/29/2025 61300 · Lab Services ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -86.00 86.00

General Journal 579485A 09/29/2025 61300 · Lab Services ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -110.00 110.00

General Journal 579484A 09/30/2025 61300 · Lab Services ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -126.00 126.00

General Journal 579487A 10/07/2025 61300 · Lab Services ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -540.00 540.00

General Journal 579488A 10/07/2025 61300 · Lab Services ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -301.00 301.00

General Journal 579855A 10/07/2025 61300 · Lab Services ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -120.00 120.00

-1,283.00 1,283.00

Bill Pmt -Check 19050 10/21/2025 MOUNTAIN HARDWARE 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -101.45

General Journal 141233(10%) 09/29/2025 63001 · Office Supplies ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -2.74 2.74

General Journal 141233(10%) 09/29/2025 63001 · Office Supplies ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -2.74 2.74

General Journal 141233(10%) 09/29/2025 63001 · Office Supplies GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -0.34 0.34

General Journal 141324(10%) 10/06/2025 68000 · Tools & Supplies ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -11.05 11.05

General Journal 141360(10%) 10/08/2025 68000 · Tools & Supplies GOVERNMENT:DISTRICT PROPERTY MAINT -29.16 29.16

General Journal 141475(10%) 10/16/2025 68000 · Tools & Supplies ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -27.71 27.71

General Journal 141475(10%) 10/16/2025 68000 · Tools & Supplies ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -27.71 27.71

 Page 15 of 23



 Plumas Eureka CSD
 Check Detail

October 2025

Type Num Date Name Account Class Paid Amount Original Amount

-101.45 101.45

Bill Pmt -Check 19051 10/21/2025 PLUMAS SIERRA REC 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -8,815.23

General Journal 6466 09/30/2025 67001 · Electricity GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -77.62 77.62

63007 · Bank Service & Finance Charges GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -1.05 1.05

General Journal 6466/18112 09/30/2025 67001 · Electricity ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -77.63 77.63

67001 · Electricity ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -2,462.28 2,462.28

67001 · Electricity ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -599.43 599.43

67001 · Electricity ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -286.18 286.18

63007 · Bank Service & Finance Charges ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -46.13 46.13

General Journal 6466/18112 09/30/2025 67001 · Electricity ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -77.63 77.63

67001 · Electricity ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -1,899.27 1,899.27

67001 · Electricity ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -3,218.04 3,218.04

63007 · Bank Service & Finance Charges ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -69.97 69.97

-8,815.23 8,815.23

Bill Pmt -Check 19052 10/21/2025 PLUMAS SIERRA TELECOMMUNICATIONS 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -109.00

General Journal 66040 09/30/2025 67003 · Internet ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -36.33 36.33

General Journal 66040 09/30/2025 67003 · Internet ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -36.33 36.33

General Journal 66040 09/30/2025 67003 · Internet GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -36.34 36.34

-109.00 109.00

Bill Pmt -Check 19053 10/21/2025 SIERRA CONTROLS, LLC 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -1,789.96

General Journal 126338 09/30/2025 66005 · EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE ENTERPRISE:Water:RESERVES -1,789.96 1,789.96

-1,789.96 1,789.96

Bill Pmt -Check 19054 10/21/2025 SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MGMT 11000 · Water & Wasterwater Checking -8,580.20

General Journal H48407 10/05/2025 60042 · Medical Benefits GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -291.70 291.70

60043 · Dental Benefits GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -10.15 10.15

60044 · Vision Benefits GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -2.42 2.42

General Journal H48407 10/05/2025 60042 · Medical Benefits ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -3,996.16 3,996.16

60043 · Dental Benefits ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -138.06 138.06

60044 · Vision Benefits ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Operations -32.59 32.59

General Journal H48407 10/05/2025 60042 · Medical Benefits ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -3,940.81 3,940.81

60043 · Dental Benefits ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -136.16 136.16

60044 · Vision Benefits ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -32.15 32.15

-8,580.20 8,580.20

 Page 16 of 23



 Plumas Eureka CSD
 Credit Card Transactions

October 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Class Amount

20100 · UMPQUA  Visas

20103 · VISA_JAMAR 6312

General Journal 10/01/2025 Adobe-Jamar Adobe AcroPro To record charge under vendor 19.99

General Journal 10/01/2025 Adobe-Jamar Adobe AcroPro To split according to classes -19.99

General Journal 10/01/2025 Adobe-Jamar Adobe AcroPro Monthly Adobe Subscription GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 1.19

General Journal 10/01/2025 Adobe-Jamar Adobe AcroPro Monthly Adobe Subscription ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 9.40

General Journal 10/01/2025 Adobe-Jamar Adobe AcroPro Monthly Adobe Subscription ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 9.40

General Journal 10/10/2025 EFT CC Bill UMPQUA BANK 10/25/25 - September Statement ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera -9.40

General Journal 10/10/2025 EFT CC Bill UMPQUA BANK 10/25/25 - September Statement ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -9.40

General Journal 10/10/2025 EFT CC Bill UMPQUA BANK 10/25/25 - September Statement GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -1.19

Total 20103 · VISA_JAMAR 6312 0.00

20105 · VISA_LEW 6320

General Journal 10/10/2025 EFT CC Bill UMPQUA BANK 10/25/25 - September Statement ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera -59.72

General Journal 10/10/2025 EFT CC Bill UMPQUA BANK 10/25/25 - September Statement ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -59.72

Total 20105 · VISA_LEW 6320 -119.44

20108 · VISA_FIRE 9153 - 1367
General Journal 10/10/2025 EFT CC Bill UMPQUA BANK 10/25/25 - September Statement GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations:Incidents:2025 / 2      -257.64

Total 20108 · VISA_FIRE 9153 - 1367 -257.64

20109 · VISA_GINAMARIE 9520

General Journal 10/01/2025 Zoom ZOOM US To record charge under vendor 33.98

General Journal 10/01/2025 Zoom ZOOM US To split according to classes -33.98

General Journal 10/01/2025 Zoom ZOOM US Monthly Zoom subscription ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 15.97

General Journal 10/01/2025 Zoom ZOOM US Monthly Zoom subscription ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 15.97

General Journal 10/01/2025 Zoom ZOOM US Monthly Zoom subscription GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 2.04

General Journal 10/01/2025 44826161492 State Water Resources C  ACampbell - Wastewater Treatment Grade 2 Test (plus web fee) ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 291.81

General Journal 10/03/2025 OfficeDepot Office Depot/Office Max To record charge under vendor 100.79

General Journal 10/03/2025 OfficeDepot Office Depot/Office Max To split according to classes -100.79

General Journal 10/03/2025 OfficeDepot Office Depot/Office Max Printer Paper - 2 Cases of 10 reams ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 33.60

General Journal 10/03/2025 OfficeDepot Office Depot/Office Max Printer Paper - 2 Cases of 10 reams ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 33.60

General Journal 10/03/2025 OfficeDepot Office Depot/Office Max Printer Paper - 2 Cases of 10 reams GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 33.59

General Journal 10/10/2025 Amazon Amazon V-Belt (qty 3) ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 32.13

General Journal 10/10/2025 EFT CC Bill UMPQUA BANK 10/25/25 - September Statement ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera -2,212.23

General Journal 10/10/2025 EFT CC Bill UMPQUA BANK 10/25/25 - September Statement ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations -679.27

 Page 19 of 23



 Plumas Eureka CSD
 Credit Card Transactions

October 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Class Amount

General Journal 10/10/2025 EFT CC Bill UMPQUA BANK 10/25/25 - September Statement GOVERNMENT:DISTRICT PROPERTY MAINT -50.04

General Journal 10/10/2025 EFT CC Bill UMPQUA BANK 10/25/25 - September Statement GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -309.29

General Journal 10/12/2025 Microsft365 Microsoft Office To record charge under vendor 12.99

General Journal 10/12/2025 Microsft365 Microsoft Office To split according to classes -12.99

General Journal 10/12/2025 Microsft365 Microsoft Office Microsoft 365 Family Monthly Subscription ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 6.11

General Journal 10/12/2025 Microsft365 Microsoft Office Microsoft 365 Family Monthly Subscription ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 6.11

General Journal 10/12/2025 Microsft365 Microsoft Office Microsoft 365 Family Monthly Subscription GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 0.77

General Journal 10/12/2025 WalMart Walmart To record charge under vendor 19.99

General Journal 10/12/2025 WalMart Walmart To split according to classes -19.99

General Journal 10/12/2025 WalMart Walmart Treats for Board Meeting ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 6.66

General Journal 10/12/2025 WalMart Walmart Treats for Board Meeting ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 6.66

General Journal 10/12/2025 WalMart Walmart Treats for Board Meeting GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 6.67

General Journal 10/15/2025 TMCC Various Heavy Equipment Boss training for Tom Connolly GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 300.00

General Journal 10/19/2025 1843874520 NETWORK SOLUTIONSTo record charge under vendor 27.98

General Journal 10/19/2025 1843874520 NETWORK SOLUTIONSTo split according to classes -27.98

General Journal 10/19/2025 1843874520 NETWORK SOLUTIONSMonthly Hosting & 50 GB Additional Storage ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 9.33

General Journal 10/19/2025 1843874520 NETWORK SOLUTIONSMonthly Hosting & 50 GB Additional Storage ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 9.33

General Journal 10/19/2025 1843874520 NETWORK SOLUTIONSMonthly Hosting & 50 GB Additional Storage GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 9.32

General Journal 10/22/2025 Amazon Amazon To record charge under vendor 117.77

General Journal 10/22/2025 Amazon Amazon To split according to classes -117.77

General Journal 10/22/2025 Amazon Amazon Coffee for the office ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 55.35

General Journal 10/22/2025 Amazon Amazon Coffee for the office ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 55.35

General Journal 10/22/2025 Amazon Amazon Coffee for the office GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 7.07

General Journal 10/22/2025 Amazon Amazon To record charge under vendor 14.34

General Journal 10/22/2025 Amazon Amazon To split according to classes -14.34

General Journal 10/22/2025 Amazon Amazon Coffee for the office ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 6.74

General Journal 10/22/2025 Amazon Amazon Coffee for the office ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 6.74

General Journal 10/22/2025 Amazon Amazon Coffee for the office GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 0.86

General Journal 10/27/2025 AstroMotel Various To record charge under vendor 673.41

General Journal 10/27/2025 AstroMotel Various To split according to classes -673.41

General Journal 10/27/2025 AstroMotel Various GMorris - Hotel for 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 224.47

General Journal 10/27/2025 AstroMotel Various GMorris - Hotel for 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 224.47

General Journal 10/27/2025 AstroMotel Various GMorris - Hotel for 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 224.47

 Page 20 of 23



 Plumas Eureka CSD
 Credit Card Transactions

October 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Class Amount

General Journal 10/27/2025 Aloh-o SR Various To record charge under vendor 25.30

General Journal 10/27/2025 Aloh-o SR Various To split according to classes -25.30

General Journal 10/27/2025 Aloh-o SR Various GMorris - lunch for travel day 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 8.43

General Journal 10/27/2025 Aloh-o SR Various GMorris - lunch for travel day 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 8.43

General Journal 10/27/2025 Aloh-o SR Various GMorris - lunch for travel day 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 8.44

General Journal 10/27/2025 Nick's cove Various To record charge under vendor 83.64

General Journal 10/27/2025 Nick's cove Various To split according to classes -83.64

General Journal 10/27/2025 Nick's cove Various GMorris - dinner for travel day 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 27.88

General Journal 10/27/2025 Nick's cove Various GMorris - dinner for travel day 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 27.88

General Journal 10/27/2025 Nick's cove Various GMorris - dinner for travel day 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 27.88

General Journal 10/28/2025 Parking Various To record charge under vendor 15.00

General Journal 10/28/2025 Parking Various To split according to classes -15.00

General Journal 10/28/2025 Parking Various GMorris - Parking at 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 5.00

General Journal 10/28/2025 Parking Various GMorris - Parking at 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 5.00

General Journal 10/28/2025 Parking Various GMorris - Parking at 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 5.00

General Journal 10/29/2025 Cattlemens Various To record charge under vendor 71.43

General Journal 10/29/2025 Cattlemens Various To split according to classes -71.43

General Journal 10/29/2025 Cattlemens Various GMorris - dinner for final day 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 23.81

General Journal 10/29/2025 Cattlemens Various GMorris - dinner for final day 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 23.81

General Journal 10/29/2025 Cattlemens Various GMorris - dinner for final day 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 23.81

General Journal 10/29/2025 Parking Various To record charge under vendor 15.00

General Journal 10/29/2025 Parking Various To split according to classes -15.00

General Journal 10/29/2025 Parking Various GMorris - Parking at 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 5.00

General Journal 10/29/2025 Parking Various GMorris - Parking at 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 5.00

General Journal 10/29/2025 Parking Various GMorris - Parking at 2025 Conference 10/27-10/29/25 GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 5.00

General Journal 10/31/2025 Adobe-Gina Adobe AcroPro To record charge under vendor 19.99

General Journal 10/31/2025 Adobe-Gina Adobe AcroPro To split according to classes -19.99

General Journal 10/31/2025 Adobe-Gina Adobe AcroPro Monthly Adobe Subscription GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 1.19

General Journal 10/31/2025 Adobe-Gina Adobe AcroPro Monthly Adobe Subscription ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 9.40

General Journal 10/31/2025 Adobe-Gina Adobe AcroPro Monthly Adobe Subscription ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 9.40

General Journal 10/31/2025 Norton-Gina Norton To record charge under vendor 9.99

General Journal 10/31/2025 Norton-Gina Norton To split according to classes -9.99

General Journal 10/31/2025 Norton-Gina Norton MICROSOFT*NORTON SECURITY ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 4.70

 Page 21 of 23



 Plumas Eureka CSD
 Credit Card Transactions

October 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Class Amount

General Journal 10/31/2025 Norton-Gina Norton MICROSOFT*NORTON SECURITY ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 4.70

General Journal 10/31/2025 Norton-Gina Norton MICROSOFT*NORTON SECURITY GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 0.59

Total 20109 · VISA_GINAMARIE 9520 -1,385.29

20112 · VISA_FIRE 9121 - 1391
General Journal 10/04/2025 Gas GRAEAGLE CHEVRON ?????G @ $?????/gal - Unit 9121 (No receipt) GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 175.00

Total 20112 · VISA_FIRE 9121 - 1391 175.00

20114 · VISA_ANTHONY 9966

General Journal 10/03/2025 Reimburse ANTHONY CAMPBELL/VAMPM Colfax - Blue DEF in POV ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 28.95

General Journal 10/03/2025 Reimburse ANTHONY CAMPBELL/VAMPM Colfax - Fuel in POV ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 167.26

General Journal 10/08/2025 Gas GRAEAGLE CHEVRON To record charge under vendor 91.13

General Journal 10/08/2025 Gas GRAEAGLE CHEVRON To split according to classes -91.13

General Journal 10/08/2025 Gas GRAEAGLE CHEVRON 17.529Gal @ $5.199/Gal - Red Ford ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 45.57

General Journal 10/08/2025 Gas GRAEAGLE CHEVRON 17.529Gal @ $5.199/Gal - Red Ford ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 45.56

General Journal 10/10/2025 EFT CC Bill UMPQUA BANK 10/25/25 - September Statement ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera -341.20

Total 20114 · VISA_ANTHONY 9966 -53.86

20115 · VISA_STEVEM 4612

General Journal 10/09/2025 Adobe-Steve Adobe AcroPro Monthly Adobe Subscription GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 19.99

General Journal 10/10/2025 EFT CC Bill UMPQUA BANK 10/25/25 - September Statement GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations -147.37

General Journal 10/11/2025 Amazon Amazon Unlined Eisenhower Jacket GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 64.34

General Journal 10/11/2025 Amazon Amazon Dickies Mens Lined Eisenhower Jacket GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 64.30

General Journal 10/11/2025 Amazon Amazon Custom Personalized Logo Embroidered Patches (qty 3) GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 65.21

General Journal 10/11/2025 Teamlogo TEAMLOGO.COM T-shirts (6) and Custom Imprints GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 575.14

General Journal 10/11/2025 4imprint Various 24 Hooded Sweatshirts w/ embroidery GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 858.63

Total 20115 · VISA_STEVEM 4612 1,500.24

20116 · VISA_JAMAR 6355

General Journal 10/07/2025 25-2389 CV SALTS 08/31/25, Inv 25-2389 ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 1,664.21

General Journal 10/23/2025 CSDA CSDA To record charge under vender 4,020.00

General Journal 10/23/2025 CSDA CSDA To split according to classes -4,020.00

General Journal 10/23/2025 CSDA CSDA Membership Dues-Regular 01/01/26 - 12/31/26 (Membership ID: ENTERPRISE:Wastewater:WASTE WATER Opera 1,340.00

General Journal 10/23/2025 CSDA CSDA Membership Dues-Regular 01/01/26 - 12/31/26 (Membership ID: ENTERPRISE:Water:WATER Operations 1,340.00

General Journal 10/23/2025 CSDA CSDA Membership Dues-Regular 01/01/26 - 12/31/26 (Membership ID: GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations 1,340.00

Total 20116 · VISA_JAMAR 6355 5,684.21

20117 · VIAS_FIRE 9181 - 1257

 Page 22 of 23



 Plumas Eureka CSD
 Credit Card Transactions

October 2025

Type Date Num Name Memo Class Amount

General Journal 10/10/2025 EFT CC Bill UMPQUA BANK 10/25/25 - September Statement GOVERNMENT:FIRE Operations:Incidents:2025 / 2      -118.81

Total 20117 · VIAS_FIRE 9181 - 1257 -118.81

Total 20100 · UMPQUA  Visas 5,424.41
TOTAL 5,424.41

 Page 23 of 23



Plumas Eureka Community Services District (PECSD) 

Policy Handbook Gap Analysis and Adoption Recommendation 

Date: November 13, 2025 
Prepared by: Gina-Marie Morris, Administrative Manager 
With the support of AI-assisted policy analysis tools 

 

Summary of Findings and Updates 

Policy Area Status in 
PECSD Policies 

Gap Identified Gap Addressed Action Taken 

Governance & 
Board Policies 

Well covered 
(Board conduct, 
meetings, ethics, 
conflict of 
interest) 

No significant 
gaps identified 

 Continue regular 
review and 
updates 

Personnel 
Policies 

Comprehensive 
(hours, leave, 
discipline) 

Needs broader 
workplace 
protections and 
whistleblower 
provisions 

Whistleblower 
and COLA gaps 
resolved via 
Policies 2270 and 
2150.40. 

Waiting on legal 
to complete their 
review of the 
proposed policy 
changes and/or 
additions. 

Financial & 
Procurement 
Policies 

Detailed and 
appropriate 

None identified Updated Policy 
3020 improves 
fiscal controls, 
aligns with Gov. 
Code, adds PO 
requirements. 

Waiting on legal 
to complete their 
review of the 
proposed policy 
changes and/or 
additions. 

Records 
Management & 
Public Records 

Records 
retention policy 
included 

Needs 
procedures for 
CPRA 
compliance and 
electronic 
records 

 This will be left 
the way it is, a 
little broader but 
with clear 
direction. 



Mail Handling & 
Delivery 

No existing 
policy 

Confusion and 
miscommunicati
on regarding 
deliveries 

Mail handling 
clarified; CPRA 
routing supported 
by Policy 3047. 

Waiting on legal 
to complete their 
review of the 
proposed policy 
changes and/or 
additions. 

IT & Data Security No existing 
policy 

No cybersecurity 
or acceptable use 
guidelines 

 This will be 
handled by IT.  No 
official policy 
needed. 

Emergency 
Preparedness & 
Continuity 

No existing 
policy 

Lack of formal 
emergency or 
continuity plan 

 No action to take, 
this is 
independent of 
the policies. 

Ethics & 
Transparency 

Partial coverage No whistleblower 
protections or gift 
policy 

Whistleblower 
Protection 
resolved via 
Policy 2270. 

Waiting on legal 
to complete their 
review of the 
proposed policy 
changes and/or 
additions. 

Social Media & 
Communications 

No existing 
policy 

No guidance for 
official 
communications 
or social media 
use 

 The District does 
not have social 
media, so this is 
not needed. 

Volunteer & 
Community 
Engagement 

No existing 
policy 

No policy to 
define volunteer 
roles, 
responsibilities, 
or conduct 

Volunteer roles, 
eligibility, 
onboarding 
clarified with 
Policies 2400 and 
2450. 

Waiting on legal 
to complete their 
review of the 
proposed policy 
changes and/or 
additions. 

Environmental & 
Sustainability 

No existing 
policy 

No guidance or 
framework 

 Consider for 
future policy 
cycle 



Workplace Safety Basic Cal-OSHA 
compliance 

Lacks 
harassment and 
reporting 
procedures 

This is addressed 
in Policies 2270 
(Whistleblower). 

Waiting on legal 
to complete their 
review of the 
proposed policy 
changes and/or 
additions. 

Governance & 
Board Policies 

Well covered 
(Board conduct, 
meetings, ethics, 
conflict of 
interest) 

No significant 
gaps identified 

 Continue regular 
review and 
updates 

 

Next Steps 

1. Draft Policy Development - Completed 
Begin drafting new and updated policies to address identified gaps. 

2. Legal and Administrative Review – In progress 
Ensure all new policies align with state and CSDA guidance. 

3. Board Presentation 
Present draft policies at the next regular meeting for consideration. 

4. Adoption and Integration 
Upon Board approval, integrate policies into the PECSD Policy Handbook. 

5. Training and Implementation 
Distribute adopted policies to staff and volunteers, with training as needed. 

6. Ongoing Review 
Establish a schedule for annual or biennial review to maintain compliance and relevance. 

 



 
 

CHIEF’S REPORT 
October 2025 

 
Call Reports and Training 
 
Calls – Medicals: 5 Fire: 0 
 
Training 

• Medical patient assessments. 
• Review of radio procedures with dispatch. 

 
Personnel Activity 

• Possibly 2-3 recruits to the department. 
• Firefighters are scheduling classes for future Overhead assignments. 

 
Fire Equipment 

• Looking to replace 9121 with another OES Type 1 or a Type 3. 
• Working with Contra Costa Fire on surplus vehicles again. 
• The pressure gauge on 9121 is not working; we are investigating. 

Other Activity  
• Burning is allowed per Cal Fire; a permit is required.   
• Dirt circle in the field, working with Jamar. (someday) 
• FEMA AFG Grant for Washer & dryer next on the list. (No progress). 
• Finishing up the 911 sign grant, will need some new numbers and posts. 
• OES is taking longer to reimburse for deployments, 4-5 months. 

 
 

 
 

 



Administrative Overview of Budgetary 
and Operational Considerations for 

Stipend Increase Request 
 

Fire Fund Sustainability and Compensation Analysis 

The Fire Fund is operating under tight fiscal constraint. According to the adopted FY 25/26 
Budget, without any Capital Outlay, the Fire Fund would have ended the year with a 
modest positive balance of $10,055. 

 

Key Sustainability Concerns 

1. A $10,055 balance is not financially healthy or sufficient to absorb new recurring 
costs. 

Even in a best-case scenario—with no capital repairs, no equipment replacements, and 
no unexpected needs—the Fire Fund ends the year with only about $10k available. 

• This cannot serve as a contingency reserve. 

• It does not protect against operational fluctuations. 

• And it is insufficient to absorb an ongoing $15,000+ annual increase in stipends 
or compensation. 

A fund that only appears balanced when capital needs are ignored is not structurally sound. 

2. With standard Capital Outlay restored, the Fire Fund becomes negative. 

Once typical annual capital needs (routine maintenance, equipment replacement, facility 
repairs) are added, the Fire Fund shifts from +$10,055 to –$20,070. 

This demonstrates that the Fire Fund balances only when unavoidable reality is excluded. In 
practice, a fire department cannot operate without capital needs. 

3. Recurring compensation obligations require dependable recurring revenue. 

Under Gov. Code § 61110(a), the District must adopt a balanced annual budget. 
Under § 61110(d), expenditures may not exceed the adopted budget unless approved by a 
4/5 Board vote. 
Gov. Code § 61114 further imposes liability on any person authorizing expenditures 
beyond available appropriations. 

Because stipend increases create permanent annual obligations, they must be supported 
by reliable annual revenue consistent with these statutory requirements. 

 



 

Impact of Proposed Stipend Increases 

This review was initiated after the District’s auditor identified that stipends and 
volunteer compensation had not been processed through payroll as required. Under 
IRS and state rules, these payments must be treated as taxable wages and are subject to 
approximately 7.25% employer payroll taxes and 7.25% employee payroll taxes, in 
addition to any normal personal withholdings. Correcting this issue and ensuring that all 
stipends are processed through payroll results in a projected increase of approximately 
$1,564 per year to the Fire Fund under the current compensation structure, before 
considering any proposed stipend increases. This added cost further emphasizes the need 
to evaluate long-term financial sustainability before adopting new recurring obligations. 

The proposed stipend increases represent new recurring annual costs, but FY 25/26 
already contains a structural deficit: 

• Operational revenue: $198,218 

• Operational expenses: $243,543 

• Structural deficit: –$45,325 (before any increases) 

Asphalt Repair Tightened the Margin Further 

Although not part of standard capital outlay, the Fire Fund’s $30,000 portion of the 
asphalt repair shows how quickly the Fire Fund’s limited flexibility disappears when real 
needs arise. 

Stipends Have Not Increased in Six Years 

Stipends and associated compensation have remained unchanged for six years, and their 
purpose includes supporting volunteer participation, reliability, retention, and overall 
operational functioning. 

Financial Reality Must Govern Feasibility 

Even when operationally justified, recurring compensation must align with dependable 
revenue—not temporary balances or variable income. 

 

OES Deployment Revenue: Helpful but Not Guaranteed 

While OES reimbursements can supplement the Fire Fund in some years, these revenues: 

• Are not guaranteed, 

• Depend on unpredictable wildfire activity and dispatch decisions, 

• Vary significantly in timing and amount, and 

• Cannot be relied upon to fund ongoing obligations. 

Because of the balanced budget requirement of Gov. Code § 61110, OES income cannot 
serve as the basis for permanent compensation increases. 



 

Board Oversight and Long-Term Financial Stability 

The District already maintains preauthorization thresholds for non-emergency purchases 
and conducts monthly expenditure reviews. To reinforce long-term sustainability, the 
Board may consider monitoring these spending trends more closely throughout the 
fiscal year. Increased Board-level visibility helps ensure spending stays aligned with the 
adopted budget and operational priorities as required under Gov. Code §§ 61110 and 
61114. 

Expanding oversight in this manner supports predictable and transparent spending 
practices. Continued emphasis on documentation, early planning, and identification of 
upcoming needs will help minimize unplanned or discretionary costs and stabilize Fire 
Fund spending patterns. 

Although OES reimbursements can provide supplemental support, they should be treated as 
practical set-aside funds (not a formal reserve) in years when they exceed expectations. 
The goal is to keep the Fire Fund’s operational budget dependent only on sustainable, 
predictable revenue, while using one-time OES income to support extraordinary or 
unavoidable capital needs in years when capital outlay exceeds expected revenues. 

This approach strengthens fiscal responsibility while preserving support for the 
Department’s operational needs. 

 

Summary of Board Options 

To address stipend and compensation adjustments within this financial context, the Board 
has three options: 

Option 1 – Adopt the Fire Department’s Proposed Increases 

Implements the full stipend and compensation adjustments as originally proposed. 
• Annual cost increase: $15,270 

This option acknowledges the six-year period without increases and aims to support 
volunteer participation, retention, and morale. However, it adds a significant 
recurring financial obligation to a structurally constrained fund. 

Option 2 – Adopt the Administrative Recommendation 

Implements a more moderate, fiscally sustainable adjustment. 
• Annual cost increase: $3,984 

This option recognizes volunteer contributions while maintaining closer alignment 
with the Fire Fund’s structural limitations and long-term fiscal capacity. 

Option 3 – Develop a Board-Determined Alternative 

Allows the Board to design its own adjustment structure. 
• Annual cost increase: Determined by the Board 

This option may include scaling or phasing in increases, or pairing adjustments with 
reductions or limitations in other Fire Fund spending categories as needed to 
remain within sustainable revenue levels. 



Plumas Eureka CSD
FY 25/26 Operational Budget

Approved 6/27/25

Customer Payments 173,543 Customer Payments -               Customer Payments 432,182 Customer Payments 358,908 
Interest Income 3,056      Interest Income -               Interest Income 3,801      Interest Income 401         
County Tax Income 17,000    County Tax Income 20,000    Grant Income -               Grant Income -               
Grant Income -               Property Rental 2,500      Other Income -               Other Income -               
Wildfire Income -               Other Income -               
Total Cash Revenue 193,598 Total Cash Revenue 22,500    Total Cash Revenue 435,983 Total Cash Revenue 359,309 

Employees/Volunteers 49,384    Employees 1,678      Employees 254,473 Employees 260,696 
Insurance 53,000    Insurance 565         Insurance 45,509    Insurance 51,660    
Utilities 5,200      Utilities -               Utilities 57,600    Utilities 57,800    
Tools, Supplies, Repairs, Maint 36,000    Tools, Supplies, Repairs, Maint 8,300      Tools, Supplies, Repairs, Maint 15,000    Tools, Supplies, Repairs, Maint 17,000    
Training, Travel, Safety, Subscrip 12,875    Training, Travel, Safety, Subscrip -               Lab, Chemicals 33,000    Lab / Sludge 55,000    
Professional Services 12,160    Professional Services 3,000      Training, Travel, Safety, Subscrip 8,200      Training, Travel, Safety, Subscrip 7,400      
Office/other 14,925    Office/other 30           Professional Services 16,660    Professional Services 16,660    
Capital Outlay 60,000    Capital Outlay -               Office/other 36,050    Office/other 43,250    
Total Expenses 243,543 Total Expenses 13,573    Depreciation 55,000    Depreciation 75,000    

Total Expenses 521,491 Total Expenses 584,466 

Wastewater Enterprise Fund

Expenses Expenses Expenses

Fire Fund District Maint Fund Water Enterprise Fund

Budget Balance: ($49,945) Budget Balance: $8,927
Budget Balance: ($85,509) Budget Balance: ($225,157)

Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue

Expenses

Chart Title

Employees/Volunteers Insurance Utilities Tools, Supplies, Repairs, Maint Training, Travel, Safety, Subscriptions Professional Services Office/other Capital Outlay

13% 4%
0%

61%

0%

22%

0%0%

49%

9%

11%
3%

6%

2%

3% 7%

10%

45%

9%
10%3%

9%

1%

3%
7%

13%
20%

22%

2%
15%

5%
5%

6%

25%



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-40 
A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Plumas Eureka Community Services 

District Approving Fire Department Stipend and Compensation Adjustments 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Plumas Eureka Community Services District (“District”) provides fire protection and 

emergency response services through its Fire Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District recognizes the importance of providing fair, transparent, and sustainable 

stipends and compensation to its fire personnel; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Fire Chief has submitted a proposal recommending increases to existing stipends 

and other associated compensation (Attachment A – Chief’s Proposal); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Administrative Manager has prepared an alternative recommendation balancing 

fiscal responsibility, retention incentives, and long-term sustainability (Attachment B – Administrative 
Proposal); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors reserves the right to establish a compensation structure of its own 

determination (Attachment C – Board-Determined Option); and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code §§ 61110(a) and 61110(d), the District may not make 

expenditures in excess of the adopted budget without authorization by resolution adopted by a four-fifths vote 
of the Board; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed all relevant financial, operational, and administrative 

considerations and wishes to approve a stipend and compensation schedule consistent with District priorities; 
 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE PLUMAS 

EUREKA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Board has reviewed the Fire Chief’s proposal, the Administrative Manager’s 
alternate proposal, and the District’s current financial position. 

 
2. The Board hereby approves Option ___, as follows: 

 
• Option 1 – Fire Chief’s Proposal: Adopts the stipend and compensation 

schedule as presented by the Fire Chief (Attachment A). 
 

• Option 2 – Administrative Alternate Proposal: Adopts the stipend and 
compensation schedule as recommended by Administration (Attachment B). 

 
• Option 3 – Board-Determined Option: Adopts a stipend and compensation 

structure of the Board’s making (Attachment C). 
 

3. The General Manager and Administrative Manager are authorized to implement the 
approved option, including any necessary budget amendment or fund transfer 
consistent with Gov. Code § 61110(d). 

 
4. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 



 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS THIS 18th  DAY OF NOVEMBER 2025 BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ASTAIN: 
 
ATTEST: Gina-Marie L. Morris 

 
__________________________________ 
Don Fregulia, Board Chairperson 

  
Gina-Marie Morris, Clerk of the Board 



Attachment A – Chief's Proposed Adjustments
THROUGH OCT 25' 446.5

Fixed Calls Monthly Hours
 Monthly Stipends # of Calls total AVG TRAINING Year

Chief 1,200.00$              44 968$        1,297$       15,562$       
(2) Captain 400.00$                 26 572$        457$          5,486$         
Eng 100.00$                 20 440$        144$          1,728$         
Med 200.00$                 11 242$        224$          2,690$         
Mechanic 100.00$                 17 374$        137$          1,649$         
FF 26 572$        57$            686$            

2,000$                   3,168$     2,317$       1,116.25$    28,918$       

3,470$        41,640$         
2,317$        28,918$         

PROPOSED SALARY 1,153$        12,722$         

Fixed AVG Calls Monthly
 Monthly Stipends # of Calls total AVG Year

Chief 1,600$                   0 -$         1,600$       19,200$       
(2) Captain 1,000$                   0 -$         1,000$       12,000$       
Eng 250$                      0 -$         250$          3,000$         
Med 250$                      0 -$         250$          3,000$         
Mechanic 250$                      0 -$         250$          3,000$         
FF 3 120$        120$          1,440$         

3,350$                   120$        3,470$       41,640$       



Attachment B – Administrative Analysis and Proposal
Proposal from Chief Munsen (validated figures)

Current Fixed 
Monthly 
Stipends

Actual Calls 
over the last 

year

Actual 
Training 

over the last 
year

Total Paid in 
the last year

Proposed 
Monthly 

Comp

Proposed 
Annual 
Comp

Change in 
Comp 

Amount

% Change in 
Comp 

Amount

Current 
Annual 

Projected 
Expense (w/ 

taxes)

Proposed 
Annual 

Projected 
Expense (w/ 

taxes)

Proposed 
Change in 

Total 
Expenses 
(w/ taxes)

% Change 
Expected 
Expenses 
(w/ taxes)

% Change 
Proposed 
Expenses 
(w/ taxes)

Chief Steve Munsen 1,200$            1,188$          160$             15,748$       1,600$          19,200$         3,452$          121.9% 16,890$        20,592$         3,702$          107.3% 130.8%
Captain Jeff Train 200$                176$              95$                2,671$         500$              6,000$           3,329$          224.6% 2,865$          6,435$            3,570$          107.3% 240.9%
Captain Rich Machado 200$                528$              138$             3,066$         500$              6,000$           2,935$          195.7% 3,288$          6,435$            3,147$          107.3% 209.9%
Eng Tom Connolly 100$                440$              130$             1,770$         250$              3,000$           1,230$          169.5% 1,898$          3,218$            1,319$          107.3% 181.8%
Med Cyndy Hallam 200$                330$              69$                2,799$         250$              3,000$           201$              107.2% 3,002$          3,218$            216$              107.3% 115.0%
Machanic John Sea 100$                396$              114$             1,710$         250$              3,000$           1,290$          175.5% 1,834$          3,218$            1,384$          107.3% 188.2%
Firefighter -$                 638$              460$             1,098$         120$              1,440$           342$              131.1% 1,178$          1,544$            367$              107.3% 140.7%

2,000$            3,696$          1,165$         28,861$       3,470$          41,640$         12,779$       144.3% 30,953$     44,659$      13,705$    107.3% 154.7%

Alternate Proposal

Alternate 
Proposed 

Fixed 
Monthly 
Stipends

Alternate 
Proposed 

Equivalent 
Calls over 

the last year

Alternate 
Proposed 

Equivalent 
Training 

over the last 
year

Alternate 
Proposed 

Equivalent 
in the last 

year

Alternate 
Proposed 
Monthly 
Average

Change in 
Comp 

Amount

% Change in 
Comp 

Amount

Alternate 
Proposed 

Annual 
Projected 

Expense (w/ 
taxes)

% Change 
Alternate 
Proposed 
Expenses 
(w/ taxes)

Chief Steve Munsen 1,294$            1,281$          173$             16,979$       1,526$          1,231$            107.8% 18,210$        115.6%
Captain Jeff Train 216$                190$              102$             2,880$         232$              209$                107.8% 3,089$          115.6%
Captain Rich Machado 216$                569$              148$             3,305$         232$              240$                107.8% 3,545$          115.6%
Eng Tom Connolly 108$                474$              140$             1,908$         116$              138$                107.8% 2,047$          115.6%
Med Cyndy Hallam 216$                356$              74$                3,018$         232$              219$                107.8% 3,236$          115.6%
Machanic John Sea 108$                427$              123$             1,843$         116$              134$                107.8% 1,977$          115.6%
Firefighter -$                 688$              496$             1,184$         120$              86$                   107.8% 1,270$          115.6%

2,156$            3,985$          1,256$         31,117$       2,575$          2,256$            107.8% 33,373$     115.6%

Increase each
item by 7.82%

Increase stipends by 
amounts ranging from 25% to 

150%, eliminate 
compensations for calls and 

training for stipened 
individuals.



Attachment B – Administrative Analysis and Proposal
Budget Effects

Current 
Budget

Current 
Projected 
Expenses

Chief's 
Proposed 
Projected 
Expenses

Alternate 
Proposed 
Expected 
Expenses

Total Expenses: 29,389$       30,953$       44,659$       33,373$         
Expected Expense in Excess of Budget: 1,564$         15,270$       3,984$           

% in Excess of Budget: 5.3% 52.0% 13.6%

Effect on Take-home Amount
Historical

Monthly Take-
home

Monthly 
Take-home

Difference 
by %

Difference 
by Amount

Monthly 
Take-home

Difference 
by %

Difference 
by Amount

Monthly 
Take-home

Difference 
by %

Difference 
by Amount

Chief Steve Munsen 1,312$            1,217$          93% (95)$              1,484$          113% 172$             1,312$          100% -$                 
Captain Jeff Train 223$                206$              93% (16)$              464$              208% 241$             223$              100% -$                 
Captain Rich Machado 255$                237$              93% (19)$              464$              182% 208$             255$              100% -$                 
Eng Tom Connolly 148$                137$              93% (11)$              232$              157% 84$                148$              100% -$                 
Med Cyndy Hallam 233$                216$              93% (17)$              232$              99% (1)$                 233$              100% -$                 
Machanic John Sea 142$                132$              93% (10)$              232$              163% 89$                142$              100% -$                 
Firefighter 92$                   85$                 93% (7)$                 111$              122% 20$                92$                 100% -$                 

2,405$            2,231$          93% (174)$            3,218$          134% 813$             2,405$          100% -$                 

Current Projection Chief's Proposed Projection Alternate Proposed Projection



Attachment C – Board Determined Option
Board Determined Option

Current Fixed 
Monthly 
Stipends

Current 
Comp per 

Call

Current 
Comp per 

Hour of 
Training

Total Paid in 
the last year

Projected 
Total 

Expenses 
(w/ taxes)

Board 
Determined 

Monthly 
Stipends

Board 
Determined 

Comp per Call

Board 
Determined 

Comp her 
Hour of 
Training

Total 
Expenses for 

Board 
Determined 

Amounts
(w/ taxes)

% Change in 
Stipend 
Amount

% Change in 
per Call 

Comp

% Change in 
per Training 
Hour Comp

Total 
Change in 
projected 

Comp/ 
Stipends 

(w/ taxes)
Chief Steve Munsen 1,200$             22.00$        2.50$           15,748$       16,898$       -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    0.0% 0.0% 0.0% (16,898)$     
Captain Jeff Train 200$                 22.00$        2.50$           2,671$          2,866$          -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    0.0% 0.0% 0.0% (2,866)$        
Captain Rich Machado 200$                 22.00$        2.50$           3,066$          3,289$          -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    0.0% 0.0% 0.0% (3,289)$        
Eng Tom Connolly 100$                 22.00$        2.50$           1,770$          1,899$          -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    0.0% 0.0% 0.0% (1,899)$        
Med Cyndy Hallam 200$                 22.00$        2.50$           2,799$          3,003$          -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    0.0% 0.0% 0.0% (3,003)$        
Machanic John Sea 100$                 22.00$        2.50$           1,710$          1,835$          -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    0.0% 0.0% 0.0% (1,835)$        
Firefighter -$                  22.00$        2.50$           1,098$          1,178$          -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    0.0% 0.0% (1,178)$        

28,861$       30,968$       -$                    (30,968)$     

Don Fregulia, Board Chairperson

Gina-Marie L Morris, Clerk to the Board

If this option is chosen then it will be printed and signed by the Chairperson.

The financial impact of this option will be calculated in real time to show how different adjustment levels affect the budget.



Summary – Resolution 2025-41 
 

Resolution 2025-41 authorizes the District to provide an optional 20% advance of 
anticipated Cal OES reimbursement pay to eligible Fire Department personnel after OES-
qualified incident deployments. 
 
The resolution also establishes a $75,000 Fire Department cash target balance to ensure 
operational readiness. This reserve may be temporarily used to fund OES advancements 
and is restored once OES reimbursement is received. 
 
Advances may not be issued if the Fire Department’s cash balance is already below the 
target for non-OES reasons or if issuing an advance would compromise operational needs. 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-41 
A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Plumas Eureka Community Services 

District Authorizing Advancement of OES Incident Pay and Establishing a 
Minimum Fire Cash Threshold 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Plumas Eureka Community Services District (“District”) provides fire protection and 

emergency response services through its Fire Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District participates in mutual aid and strike team deployments through the California 

Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) and may receive reimbursement for personnel time, equipment, and 
related incident costs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the reimbursement process through Cal OES can result in a delay of several months 

between deployment and receipt of funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the intent of the District to provide reasonable financial support to participating 

personnel while ensuring adequate cash reserves for operational readiness; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board finds it prudent to authorize a limited advancement of anticipated OES funds 

while maintaining a minimum Fire Department cash balance to safeguard against cash deficiencies during 
emergency response operations; 

 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE PLUMAS 

EUREKA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. When the District has a confirmed expectation of reimbursement from the California 
Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) for personnel participation in qualified incident 
response, the District may advance up to twenty percent (20%) of the anticipated OES 
personnel reimbursement to each eligible participant who elects to receive such an 
advancement. 

2. The remaining balance of the reimbursement shall be paid to the personnel upon 
receipt of the OES funds by the District. 

3. The District shall establish a Fire Department cash and cash-equivalent target balance 
of seventy-five thousand dollars ($75,000). This amount is intended to safeguard 
operational readiness and to provide a cushion that may, when necessary, be 
temporarily drawn down to fund authorized OES advancements, with the expectation 
that the balance will be restored upon receipt of Cal OES reimbursement. 

4. No OES advancement shall be approved if, at the time of approval: 
 
(a) the Fire Department’s cash and cash-equivalent balance is already below seventy-
five thousand dollars ($75,000) for reasons other than prior OES advancements, or 
 
(b) payment of the requested advancement would reasonably be expected to impair the 
District’s ability to meet its ongoing operational and emergency response obligations. 

5. The Administrative Manager is authorized to calculate and process the advancements 
in accordance with this resolution and any applicable state or federal reimbursement 
guidelines. 



 

 

 

6. The General Manager is authorized to establish written procedures to administer this 
advancement program, including verification of reimbursement eligibility, 
documentation of employee requests, and reconciliation of final payments upon receipt 
of Cal OES funds. 

7. This resolution is adopted pursuant to Government Code §§ 61110(a) and 61110(d), 
ensuring that all expenditures are consistent with the adopted budget and within 
available appropriations. 

8. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS THIS 18th  DAY OF NOVEMBER 2025 BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ASTAIN: 
 
ATTEST: Gina-Marie L. Morris 

 
__________________________________ 
Don Fregulia, Board Chairperson 

  
Gina-Marie Morris, Clerk of the Board 



 
CONTRACT FOR EMPLOYMENT OF GENERAL MANAGER 

 
 

This agreement is entered into by and between Jamar Tate (hereinafter, "Employee") and the 
Plumas Eureka Community Services District (hereinafter, "District") 

Whereas District desires to employ the Employee as its General Manager and; 

Whereas Employee desires to be employed as General Manager; The parties hereto agree as 

follows: 

I. TERM OF EMPLOYMENT: The employee shall be employed at the will of the Plumas Eureka 
Community Services District Board of Directors (hereinafter "Board of Directors") starting 
November 18, 2024. This Agreement shall automatically renew on an annual basis on the 
anniversary date of execution unless otherwise determined by formal action of the Board of 
Directors prior to the renewal date. 
The Board shall provide written notice to the Employee no later than sixty (60) days before the 
anniversary date if it intends not to renew this Agreement. 
All other terms and conditions of employment shall remain in effect during any renewal period 
unless modified in writing and approved by both parties. 
 

2. COMPENSATION: District shall compensate Employee at the sum of $106,000 (plus 
COLA adjustments) per year, consistent with District policy as adopted or amended by the 
Board of Directors, payable in accordance with the District’s regular payroll schedule.  
Employee shall also be entitled to participate in all benefits offered to any employee of the 
Plumas Eureka Community Services District (PECSD) as stated in the Employee Benefits 
agreement. 

DUTIES OF GENERAL MANAGER: Employee shall use his best efforts to perform the duties 
set forth by the Board of Directors. In addition, Employee shall represent and carry out his duties 
faithfully and with fidelity in all matters in connection with his employment and shall do nothing 
to interfere with or compromise his obligation to the District. 

CERTIFICATION: Employee shall maintain at least a Grade III Wastewater Treatment Operator 
Certification, a Grade II Water Distribution Operator Certificate, and Grade II Water Treatment 
Operator Certificate. 

ANNUAL REVIEW: Review of Employee's performance shall be done annually beginning one 
year after initial employment. The Board of Directors shall evaluate the activities and conduct of 
Employee. Satisfactory evaluations shall be necessary for Employee to continue employment 
with the District. 

REIMBURSEMENT FOR EXPENSES: In addition to any compensation due to Employee the 
District shall reimburse Employee for any extraordinary or out of pocket expenses in accordance 
with District policies then in effect or as approved by the Board of Directors. 

VEHICLE USE: District shall provide Employee with a motor vehicle for the conduct of all 
business of District. This shall not include to and from transportation to the District for normal 
work duties. 

OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT: Employee may perform employment other than for District only 
with the approval of the Board of Directors. 

 

 



 

 

TERMINATION: This Agreement may be terminated only as provided in this section. 
 

A. RESIGNATION BY EMPLOYEE 
Employee may terminate this Agreement at any time by submitting a written notice of 
resignation. Upon the effective date of such resignation, all obligations of the District under 
this Agreement shall cease, except that Employee shall be entitled to: 

1. Payment of all salary accrued through the effective date of resignation; and 

2. Compensation for any unused vacation accrued in accordance with District policy. 

B. TERMINATION BY DISTRICT FOR CAUSE 
The District may terminate this Agreement only for cause. “Cause” includes, but is not limited to, 
any of the following: 

1. Conviction of a felony, or conviction of any misdemeanor involving dishonesty or 
moral turpitude; 

2. A material breach of this Agreement, including but not limited to dereliction of duty 
or inexcusable failure to perform responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors; 

3. Gross insubordination; 

4. Misappropriation or theft of District property; 

5. Intentional misrepresentation of any fact material to the operations, business, or 
governance of the District. 

C. NOTICE AND OPPORTUNITY TO RESPOND 
Prior to final action to terminate for cause, Employee shall be provided: 

1. Written notice of the proposed termination; 

2. A written statement setting forth the specific grounds constituting cause; and 

3. An opportunity to respond to the Board of Directors or its designee, either in writing or in 
person, prior to final determination. 

D. EFFECT OF TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 
If the District terminates this Agreement for cause, Employee shall be entitled only to: 

1. Payment of salary accrued through the effective date of termination; and 

2. Compensation for any unused vacation accrued in accordance with District policy. 

Written notice of final termination and payment of monies due under this subsection shall be 
provided to Employee within forty-eight (48) hours of the effective date of termination. 

 

3. RETURN OF DISTRICT PROPERTY: Should Employee for any reason no longer be 
employed by District, Employee shall forthwith deliver any district property in the possession or 
control of Employee to the District. Should Employee fail to return such property within a 
reasonable period of time, District shall be entitled to all costs, including reasonable attorney 
fees, incurred while securing or attempting to secure the return of the property. 
  



 

4. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. 
There are no other promises, expressed or implied, between the parties, and each party agrees to 
act in good faith at all times during the existence of this agreement or any amendments thereto in 
writing. 

5. SEVERABILITY: If any provisions of this agreement are held to be invalid or unenforceable, 
the remaining portion shall continue to be valid and enforceable. In such event however, should 
any provision held to be invalid or unenforceable hamper the purpose of this agreement or render 
it meaningless, the agreement shall be deemed cancelled. 
 
6. NO WAIVER OF CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS: The failure of a party to enforce any 
provision of this agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of the right of such party 
to subsequently seek enforcement of such provision, PROVIDED such party does so 
within a reasonable time so as not to prejudice the right of the other. 

7.NO WAIVER OF ANY OTHER PROVISIONS OF LAW: Nothing herein shall be 
construed as a waiver of the right of any party hereto of any law pertaining to the rights 
and duties of employers and employees. 

8. RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES; ATTORNEY FEES: 

• The resolution of any dispute hereunder shall be attempted first by mediation by a 
neutral person selected by the parties. The parties shall share the fees of the mediator 
and bear their own costs. 

• If the parties cannot agree on the selection of a mediator, or the attempt to mediate a 
resolution fails, the dispute shall be submitted to binding arbitration. In such event the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fee and costs, enforceable to 
a court of competent jurisdiction. 

9. APPLICABLE LAWS: This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
California. 

 
 

Employee Signature 

Date  
 

Board Chairperson 
Date  
 


	25-11-18 Board Meeting Agenda
	0 PECSD_Public_Comment_and_Clerks_Note
	1 Pat's CSD BOD Meeting EXECUTIVE SUMMARY November 17
	2 Minutes 10.21.25
	3 Request to Use Reserve Funds
	4a General Manager Report November 2025
	4a4 PECSD Exploratory Test Well Siting Criteria
	4a4a Causes of Arsenic Summary of Burkhard Report
	4a4b Test Well Report Summary
	4b Report on Arsenic Compliance Actions 11-18-2025 Update
	Report on Arsenic Compliance Actions
	Iron and Manganese Compliance Levels

	5a Administrative Manager Report September 2025
	5b Accounts Receivable 25-10
	Payments Received

	5c AgedBalance 10162025
	Aged Balance

	5d Financial Statements Oct 2025
	Cash Report
	Operational Budget
	Captial Budget
	3. Rollfwd-YTD
	Investment Summary
	Checks
	Credit Cards

	5e Policy Review
	6 chiefs report November 18 2025
	9 Resolution 2025-40 Approving fire department stipend and compensation adjustments
	Resolution 2025-40 Sustainability_Analysis
	Resolution 2025-40 Approving fire department stipend and compensation adjustments
	RESOLUTION NO. 2025-40
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE PLUMAS
	PASSED AND ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS THIS 18th  DAY OF NOVEMBER 2025 BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE:
	NOES:
	ASTAIN:

	Admin Narative on Fire Stipend Increase Proposal
	Sheet1

	Admin Narative on Fire Stipend Increase Proposal.pdf
	Attachment C

	ADPB036.tmp
	Sheet1


	10 Resolution 2025-41 Authorizing advancement of OES Incident pay and establishing a minimum Fire cash threshold
	Resolution_2025-41_Summary
	Summary – Resolution 2025-41

	Resolution 2025-41 Authorizing advancement of OES Incident pay and establishing a minimum Fire cash threshold
	RESOLUTION NO. 2025-41
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE PLUMAS
	1. When the District has a confirmed expectation of reimbursement from the California Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) for personnel participation in qualified incident response, the District may advance up to twenty percent (20%) of the anticip...
	2. The remaining balance of the reimbursement shall be paid to the personnel upon receipt of the OES funds by the District.
	3. The District shall establish a Fire Department cash and cash-equivalent target balance of seventy-five thousand dollars ($75,000). This amount is intended to safeguard operational readiness and to provide a cushion that may, when necessary, be temp...
	4. No OES advancement shall be approved if, at the time of approval:  (a) the Fire Department’s cash and cash-equivalent balance is already below seventy-five thousand dollars ($75,000) for reasons other than prior OES advancements, or  (b) payment of...
	5. The Administrative Manager is authorized to calculate and process the advancements in accordance with this resolution and any applicable state or federal reimbursement guidelines.
	6. The General Manager is authorized to establish written procedures to administer this advancement program, including verification of reimbursement eligibility, documentation of employee requests, and reconciliation of final payments upon receipt of ...
	7. This resolution is adopted pursuant to Government Code §§ 61110(a) and 61110(d), ensuring that all expenditures are consistent with the adopted budget and within available appropriations.
	8. This resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.
	PASSED AND ADOPTED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS THIS 18th  DAY OF NOVEMBER 2025 BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE:
	NOES:
	ASTAIN:


	11 General Manager Contract 2025-2



